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CONGRESSIONAL METHODOLOGY: NOW IT AF-
FECTS FEDERAL STUDENT FINANCIAL AID
ELIGIBILITY

MONDAY, JUNE 20, 1988

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POST SECONDARY EDUCATION,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Teaneck, NJ.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 1 p.m. in the as-
sembly room of the Student Union Center of Fairleigh Dickinson
University, Teaneck, NJ, Hon. Pat Williams, presiding.

Members present: Representatives Williams, Hayes, R. ukema,
and Petri.

Staff present: Richard Jerue, Patricia Sullivan, Michael Lance,
and Pamela Kruse.

Mr. WILLIAMS. I call this subcommittee to order. This subcommit-
tee is continuing its undertaking of oversight hearings. Not only
does this subcommittee create federal higher education programs,
we then, of course, have the responsibility of making sure, or as
sure as we can, that those programs operate as effectively as possi-
ble. That, of course, is termed, "oversight." Today, we're conduct-
ing an oversight hearing on what we refer to as Congressional
Methodology. Although the term sounds somewhat ominous, it
merely refers to how one determines the need for student financial
assistance, needs analysis.

Under "needs analysis," the national information is collected
from students and their families to determine how much they can
reasonably be expected to contribute to the cost of attending col-
lege and that amount, of course, is then subtracted from the college
cost to determine the need for student aid.

The Congressional Methodology is the system established, in stat-
ute, to determine eligibility for federal student aid. The methodolo-
gy was included in the 1986 Higher Education Amendments. Prior
to that time, there were a number of needs analysis systems used
to determine ones need for student financial assistance. Quite often
these different systems provided varying and confusing need deter-
minations.

It was not unusual for the same family to be told that it had to
contribute totally different amounts to college costs based merely
on what needs analysis system was used and what federal assist-
ance it was being applied for. As one can imagine, this caused a
great deal ,3f confusion, uncertainty and, as many members of Con-
gress discovered, sometimes anger.

(1)
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For almost a decade, Congress has supported the creation of a
single system of needs analysis for federal programs.

The 1980 Higher Education Amendments required that such a
system be developed, yet between 1980 and 1986, that did not
happen. Finally, in 1986, the Congress, concerned with the lack of
response to its requirements that such a system be developed,
placed that system in the law. That is called Congressional Method-
ology.

It is based on several fundamental points. First, determinations
of need for federal student aid programs should be uniform.
Second, such determinations should be made by the federal govern-
ment, since those decisions ultimately involve the distribution of
federal tax dollars and finally, those determinations should be
placed in the law where they can be decided by the elected repre-
sentatives of the public.

The Congressional Methodology is not completely new, it con-
tains many of the elements of the previously used systems of needs
analysis, yet it is a change from the old way of doing business and
as with any change, there may be some unforeseen problems that
should be addressed That is the reason for today's hearing.

The Congressional Methvdology is beginning to go into effect.
Some problems may be developing. We want to take a look at
those, to explore the reasons for them and to determine whether
the problems are real or perceived and to figure out, as best we
can, if there is something that Congress should do to rectify them if
they are real. We want to learn what impact the methodology is
having and how it is affecting different types of students.

The Subcommittee, I am sure, will leave this hearing informed
for we do have an excellent group of witnesses.

I want to thank my friend and colleague, Congresswoman Rouke-
maMarge and her staff for the time and effort, that you have de-
voted in putting this hearing together. Because of those efforts, we
will have a chance today to hear from college presidents, financial
aid administrators and from the people who are directly affected by
a needs analysis decision, that is, students and parents.

We will also he, frnm two representatives of the Advisory Com-
mittee on Student Financial Assistance. This committee was e-ze-
ated, by the Congress, to provide us with expert information on the
intricacies of student aid, particularly on delivery issues as com-
plex as needs analysis.

This is the first time, to my knowledge, that this group has infor-
mally appeared before the Congress, outside of Washington and I
hope it represents a precedent that will be continued.

Congresswoman Roukema, we're delighted to be in your district.
We appreciate your inviting us, particularly appreciate your lead-
ership on this and other education issues. I know that you repre-
sent a state that has a long and grand tradition of care and con-
cern with educating its people and I must say that you exude that
concern as you represent your citizens here in the Congress.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Thank you very much, Chairman Williams. We
are delighted to have you here and Congressman Petri from the
State of Wisconsin. By the way, Congressman Williams, for the
record, is from Montana and I guess all of you are suffering from
near drought, but we welcome you here today, to beautiful north-
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em New Jersey. We are a residential area, we are a family area
that treasures higher education as the American dream.

I do want to make some observations that in view of the heat
and the length of our agenda, I hope that they can be short but let
me make some ( ,ervations regarding this hearing and related
subjects which is not directly on the agenda today but has been a
part of our ongoing discussions in Washington and I think has an
intimate relationship to the methodology discussions we will have
today and that is the subject of loon defaults.

I bring the subject up, not only because we have had a series of
three hearings in Washington in preparation for what we all hope
is going to be a bipartisan bill to address the problem of defaults.
But I raise the issue because it has been the subject of much dis-
cussion here in New Jersey with the recent releese of a report by
our Commissioner of Higher of Education indicating the default
rate. I know this has been clearly outlined in the hearings that we
have had in Washington. This is a problem of major and growing
proportions and it may, indeed, be related in some respect to Con-
gressional Methodology.

I raise the subject, not only because the size of that default rate
is approaching an estimated $1.6 billion, which is no small amount
of money. It is equivalent to, I believe, one third of the total annual
amount spent on student loan program. But also, it represents a
measure of eroding public support for all student programs and so
we have to be very alert to the problem as we address this subject.

Some have suggested that the answer to the default problem is to
increase the Pell Grant Program. I take a little different point of
view of believing that we cannot necessarily throw good money
after bad, we first have to understand the nature of the default
problem before we can prescribe a remedy, whether it be increas-
ing grants or redefining the Student Loan Program and who quali-
fies for those student loan programs.

I do want to go on to say that, in keeping with my promise to
keep this short, I will not rive my normal lecture that this subcom-
mittee has heard before on the efficacy of work programs and
study programs, but I will say, for this group here, to use a short
form, I think working your way through college is as American as
apple pie and I hope that whatever way we do approach the default
and the methodology program, we will understand that this is a
time honored tradition in American higher education and one that
we will uphold and, perhaps extend and make it more possible.

The intent of this hearing now is to hear comments of +hose who
are here with eminent credentials and to tell us exactly what their
experiences have been and what their analysis is with this new
Congressional Methodology. It is clear from the hearings that we
have thus far had that institutions needed to have consistent meth-
ods for measuring the ability of families to contribute toward edu-
cational cf-sts.

Need determination had to be systematized in some fashion as
the Chairman has already pointed out. Under the old system of the
uniform methodology, there were numerous questions that were
raised and forced Congress to take action in 1986 in order to unify
the approach. Although it said it was a uniform methodology, there
seemed to be little uniform about it.

7
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The questic .1 now is whether in approaching the problem we
have over compensated or have created other methods and I think
that is what we are here to determine today. Certainly our own in-
stitutions of higher cducation and those representing the loan
grant groups as well as the students here today are going to give us
their own perspeci,..ve.

I want you to know that I initially approached the Chairman on
this subject when we were first alerted by a case report in our own
district office about a student who had been notified or alerted that
although he had always qualified and nothing had changed, in
terms of the family circumstances, under the new program, he did
not qualify. Well, if that was his problem and as early on in the
year, before the program really got under way, we felt that, per-
haps, this was the first warning sign, and it was at that point that
I approached the Chairman.

The Chairman very wisely said this is something that does need
oversight hearings and that is what has brought us here today.

So, I just want to thank all of you who have come here. We are
anxious to hear your testimony and without further ado, I will
turn the gavel back to the Chairman.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you gentlelady. The gentleman from Wis-
consin and our colleague and friend on the Committee, Mr. Petri.

Mr. PETRI. Pat, I want to join in thanking you for scheduling this
hearing in New Jersey and to say that I wanted to be here not only
because of the impressive series of panels that has been gathered
togetherespecially I look forward to hearing from my friend, Bob
Donaldson, who leads a dynamic team here at Fairleigh Dickin-
sonbut also because of the enormous respect that I and others in
the Congress have for Marge Roukema. She is second to none, in
Congress, in terms of depth of interest and experience in education
as a teacher, a school board member, and a member of the House
Education and Labor Committee during all of her years in the Con-
gress and so this should be a very worthwhile hearing.

Mr. WILLIAMS. We have another colleague who will be joining us,
Congressman Hayes from Illinois. I understand that he is on a
later flight, but he will be here.

Our first four panelists to come forward and join us here at the
witness table is Mr. Brugel, Mr. Donaldson, Mr. Bloustein and Ms.
Farris.

Statements of all the witnesses will be entered in their entirety
into our hearing record. You may proceed to present your full testi-
mony or highlight it in any fashion that you wish.

We'll first hear from the Assistant Chancellor of the New Jersey
Department of Higher Educaticn, John Brugel.

STATEMENT OF JOHN BRUGEL, ASSISTANT CHANCELLOR, NEW
JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHER EDUCATION

Mr. BRUGEL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Commit-
tee. Let me first welcome you to New Jersey. We're delighted to
have you here. We think that we have a very important story to
tell, as it relates to Congressional Methodology.

M:, name is John Brugel. I am the Assistant Chancellor, for
Higher Education, for the State of New Jersey.

S
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My responsibilities encompass the Student Assistance Programs.
I am pinch hitting this afternoon fur P.A1 Hollander, who is our
Chancellor of Higher Education and has already submitted written
testimony for the record.

I will tell you that we have responsibility to the Department of
Higher Education for the State Guarantee Agency for a program of
state grants and scholarships. The combination of these deliver ap-
proximately 1300 million to our students.

The perspective I would share with you today I gained as an un-
dergraduate where I received student assistance from Title IV pro-
grams and also as a graduate student. I have worked nearly two
decades in the area of student financial assistance beginning in the
community college, working at a land gradt university, and now
working within a state system.

My general observations are that the programs that we have,
starting back in 1958 with the NVEA, are a complex mosaic and
that when one aspect of it changes, indeed, there are aftershocks
that are experienced.

The point that made earlier that wc. had inexact findings
with the previous methodology is perhaps aebatable, but the point
is that was a progression from where we had been prior. The
Keppel Task Force, which reported out in the mid-seventies, gave
us something that was uniform methodology which was better than
what we had prior.

I would say that the idea of having a precise, uniform finding
whether it is called uniform methodology or Congressional Method-
ology is certainly desirable. But what we ,need is a single applica-
tion which delivers a single need analysis finding. Regrettably, the
move to the Congressional Methodology is one that has caused the
State of New Jersey to jettison the use of that national methodolo-
gy because we find it so harsh for this upcoming academic year, we
have had to break ranks, if you will.

Previously we felt it was very important to have single applica-
tion and a single calculation of need and we found a need that was
being used was reasonable. The Congressional Methodology, in our
opinion, is not. Let me try and explain why.

We find that New Jersey collegiate undergraduates have lost $40
million in Pell Grants and loans during the last two years. They
will lose an additional estimated $60 million in federal aid eligibil-
ity in the 1988-89 academic year due to Congressional Methodolo-
gy. There is an irony here because we feel that while we have been
able to successfully battle budget cuts, we feel as though we have
begun to lose the war in Congress with reauthorization because of
the loss of this aid eligibility.

Five years ago New Jersey collegiate undergraduates were re-
ceiving about the same amount of Pell and state grants. But this
year we find that our state grant delivery is nearly twice that of
the P' 11 program. Clearly there has been a shift and a change.

That is highlighted in the testimony that you have before you on
page 7, the second graph which shows the amuunt of dollars in our
public colleges with the guaranteed student loans.

Fortunately, the authorization on the reduced student loan eligi-
bility in New Jersey public colleges for this group has been reduced
by more than 50 percent, dropping from an estimated $14 millioli

9
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to $4 million in one year. The Department of Higher Education es-
timates that federal student aid eligibility for New Jersey college
undergraduates will be reduced due to CM by approximateiy 10

percent or $43 million. This constriction will affect nearly half of
all our dependent students.

The difference of impact on that constituent is demonstrated in
the testimony you have before you on page 9, the third graph, be-
cause there is a differential impact which shows the community
colleges follow behind the 4 year public colleges by about a third
and our independent sector institutions by an average of about
$1,600. Clearly, a very substantial loss.

A major factor in this aid reduction in the CM is due to the ap-
proach to student earnings. What we have is a clear disincentive
that has been introduced with the new methodology. We find that
for the students who are willing to work harder and longer, that on
a dollar for dollar basis, there is an aid reduction in their eligibility
the succeeding years.

I would argue before the committee that need analysis is an in-
exact science and that the previous approach that was used didn't
have student earnings for the dependent students as part of the
main line calculations and I would urge the committee to look at
that very carefully as to potential options and try and rectify the
problem that has been created.

My recommendations will be simple, being merely to recognize
that as currently configured, CM provides a very harsh evaluation
of the family's ability to pay and secondly, that you draft the cur-
rent Congressional Methodology student earnings treatment and
return to the previous summer earnings expectations, with institu-
tional discretion to adjusted earnings, expectations, either individ-
ually cr collectively.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of T. Edward Hollander follows:]

1 1 )
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Statement of T. Edward Hollander

Chancellor of Higher Education in New Jersey

on

The Impact of "Congressionll Methodology"

on New Jersey College Undergraduates

Before the House of Representatives

Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education of the

Committee on Educaticn and Labor

June 20, 1988
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Three years ago I testified before this committee on the
impact of the cuts in the federal student assistance programs
proposed in the Administration s FY 1987 budget At that time, I

warned that the effect of adopting the Administration s budget
proposals would be to reduce federal assistance available to New
Jersey students by $100 million. Congress rejected those budget
cuts, and the higher education community felt it had won another
of the annual budget battles against the reduction of student
aid At the same time, the Reauthorization Act was being written
and passed into law by Congress. We were too busy fighting the
battles against the Administration s budget proposals to notice
that we were losing the war in Congress through Reauthorization.
By the end of the next academic year, New Jersey co....ege students
will in fact have lost $100 million in federal aid They lost
approximately $40 million in Fell Urants and student loans during
the last two years; we estimate that they will lose an additional
$60 million in federal aid eligibility as a result of the intro-
duction of Congressional Methodology need analysis in academic
year 1988-89

Congress will not see the full extent of these lossea in the
Department of Education s aggregate expenditure re)orts because
the impact will be selective Traditional moderate and middle
income dependent college undergraduates at lower cost public
institutions will bear the brunt of the federal student aid
losses. Their losses may very well be offset by substantial
increases in aid eligibility for non-traditional self-supporting
students and the rapid expansion of proprietary trade schools,
where the combination of high fees and a population of low income
students will assure the continuing growth of federal aid funds.
In 1986 -d7, for example, when the Pell Grant awards were reduced
in the moderate income ranges, New Jersey college students lost
$10 million or 20% of funds available in the prior year, New
Jersey proprietary trade schools lost one million; or 5%.

There is a striking difference between the State of
New Jersey s continually growing commitment to student aid and
the federal government's continual retreat from its responsibili-
ty for supporting access to higher ed,.:cation. Five years ago the
amount of aid available to New Jersey college undergraduates
through Pell Grants was about the same as that provided by state
grants This year the state was providing nearly twice as much
aid to nearly twice as many students as the Pell Grant program.
Thc. difference is even more striking within some of the sectors:
students at New Jersey independent colleges, for example, re-
ceived four times as much aid from state grants as from P 11
grants The attaches: graphs of these differences speak for
then alves.

W,t have also prepared a table which shows the difference in
Pell Grant and New Jersey state grant eligibility by income
distribution New Jersey is a high income state median family
income will be approaching $40,000 this year But it is also a

-2-
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high cost of living state - it takes more money to be poor in
New Jersey than elsewhere. The national need formulas do not
take this into consideration While Pell Grant eligibility drops
sharply in the moderate income ranges under $30,000, New Jersey
continues to provide tuition relief to over 90% of the applicants
with family incomes under $30,300.

Before 1587 the only significant form of federal student aid
available to families with incomes over $30,000 at public
four-year colle-ss were the Guaranteed Student Loans. This year
Reauthorization required that the Expected Family Contribution in
the loan program for all students had to be baled on formulas
that included assessments of family essets and student summer
savings, which had previously been excluded for loan eligibility.
The effect on dependent studIts at l,.-cost public colleges has
been disastrous loan eligibility at our public c.,3'.,.eges has
been cut in half; the amount of loan dollars available to stu-dents with family incomes over $30,000 at New Jersey public
collages has dropped from $14 million to $4 million in one year!

I will focus my remarks on the aspect of Congressional
Methodology which will substantially reduce federal student aid
eligibility for the traditional dependent college undergraduates
from moderate and middle income families. This is a group for
whom the problem is not access, but r-ther affordability. They
are not poor, but they are hard-pressed to find the many thou-
sands of dollars which we expect them to contribute to their
children's college education. Federal policy already eliminated
virtually all ;toddle income students from the Pell Grant program
years ago. The introduction of Uniform Methodology need analysis
for all borrowers in the student loan program ii 1987-88 has
already eliminated about 20% of our student borrowers; at our low
cost public institutions two-thirds of dependent students with
family incomes over $30,000 lost their GSL eligibility this year.
We estimate that the introduction of Congressional Methodology in
the coming year will eliminate or reduce loan eligibility for
another 40% of the dependent undergraduate borrowers still left
in the program.

The major change introduced by Congressional Methodology for
dependent undergraduates is that the student's portion of the
"expected family contribution" will include actual student
earnings in the prior calendar year. Under the current Uniform
Methodology, actual student earnings are generally not t...ken into
account; instead there is a fixed amount ($700 for freshmen, $900
for others) representing "summer savings" included in the expect-
ed famil" contribution. With Congressional Methodology, the
$700/900 will be the minimum student contribution. If 70% of
actual after-tax atudent earning exceeds this minimum, this
becomes the new, higher student contribution. This generally
means that any student who earns more than about $1,500 in the
prior year will be eligible for less aid.

-3-
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Last fall we considered using Congressional Methodology for

determining state grant eligibility The effect would have been
to reduce our programs by $6 million ana reduce awards fot 4u% of

the dependent students New Jersey will not use Congressional
Methodology for its programs

Earlier t!-..4 year we simulated the effect of Congressional
Methodology on the 57,000 dependent college undergraduates from

New Jersey who were eligible for federal student aid. TLa effect

was to reduce their aggregate aid eligibility by $43 million or

10% About 45% of the depE:ident students were affected, losing

an average of over $1,500 in federal aid eligibility as a result

of Congressional Methodology. At our community colleges about
half of the students will have their aid eligibility cut from an

average of $3,100 to an average of $1,600 (almost 50% less). At

our public four year colleges average awards will be cut by
one-third, from $4,100 co $2,700.

These early estimates were based on the student earnings

reported on last year's aid applications when this was not a

required data element. On the applications received so far this

year where student earnings are required to be reported - we
are finding that the impact will in fact be much greater. So far

60% of the state grant applicants are reporting earnings which

increase their contributions and will reduce aggregate aid

eligibility by about $60 million in the coming year.

The decision to assess actual student earnings instead of

assuming a fixed $700/900 contribution was based on the notion
that student earnings represent an untapped "available resource."

Yes, well over half of our undergraduates do meet part of their

college costs by working. Does that mean we should reduce the
financial aid eligibility of those students who work harder to

earn more' One of the patterns which we have found is that as

family incomes go up, larger proportions of students work. The

reason for this is that middle income students are eligible for
little aid other than loans, so they must work more to meet their

college expenses. With Congressional Methodology this becomes a
no-win situation: the more the students earn to supplement their

financial aid, the more their financial aid is reduced in the

next year.

We need to recognize that both the "expected family contri-

bution" derived from need analysis and the "educational costs"

estimatei by the colleges in formulating typical student budgets

are not absolutes. They are reasonable approximations of the
average costs and the average ability to pay, but they will vary

substantially in individual cases. The system to determine need

must have room for flexibility. Under Uniform Methodology we
allowed that flexibility through student earnings, which were not

assessed. If the family was unable to pay the "expected" amount

or if actual expenses exceeded the typical student budget, then

we allowed the students to make up the difference through work

without reducing their aid eligibility We also allowed them to

qualify for student loans on the basis of a less rigorous assess-

ment of need than for grant eligibility We should return to

that reasonable approach.

Thank you

-4-
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STATEMENT OF ROBERT DONALDSON, CHAIRMAN, NEW JERSEY
ASSOCIATION OF INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

Mr. DONALDSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I am also President of Fairleigh Dickinson University, New Jer-

sey's largest independent higher education institution, and it is my
pleasure to be your host today and to welcome you to the Teaneck
campus, which is the largest of our three New Jersey campuses.

Most higher education administrators would agree that sweeping
changes in student financial aid resulted from the reauthorization
of the Higher Education Act in 1986. Clearly the intent of reau-
thorization was to streamline the financial assistance process and
make it more equitable for students and their families. However,
after 18 months of attempting to work through the maze of reau-
thorization, specifically Congressional Methodology, professional
judgment and numerous technical amendments, we at Fairleigh
Dickinson University wonder if the goals of reauthorization have
indeed been met. Some financial aid recipients will soon enjoy the
fruits of Congressional Methodology while many others will mourn
the loss of the uniform methodology formerly used to determine
student financial need.

The object of my brief comments today is to share FDUs observa-
tions and experiences since the passage of the reauthorization and
the introduction of Congressional Methodology. We see the impact
mainly in terms of student eligibility, treatment of student earn-
ings and inequities in the treatment of veterans benefits.

My first point is that Congressional Methodology has created
major shifts in student eligibility. For example, on the average
each dependent student in FDUs population for the 1988-89 aca-
demic year will be required to contribute toward college expenses
an additional $1,050 from base year earnings over and above the
$700 to $900 previously required. This higher requirement will
render some students ineligible for certain aid programs.

At the same time, greater numbers of independent students with
dependents and married students will become eligible for such pro-
grams. Because 85 percent or more of financial aid recipients at
our university are dependent students and the majority of these
students are employed on a part time basis to supplement family
and educational expenses, Congressional Methodology will hurt the
large majority of our aid applicants.

One case at FDU serves as a good example of the effects of Con-
gressional Methodology on the dependent student. Let's call this
student John. In 1986, John's family earned $27,974. John's own
income was $4,524. His total financial aid package amounted to
$8,925. In 1987, his family income dropped to just under $19,000
and his own income rose slightly to just over $5,000. Now one
would think that his total aid package would be increased in some
proportion to the reduction in total family income. This did not
happen. Instead, using Congressional Methodology, John's aid
package for 1988-89 amounted to $7,500, a reduction of $1,425.

Unfortunately there are many other FDU students whose finan-
cial aid will be similarly reduced even in light of a reduction in
total family resources. A major source of funds for many middle
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income FDU students has been the Stafford Student Loan Pro-
gram, formerly known as The Guaranteed Student Loan.

While borrowing levels have increased, the reauthorization re-
quires that eligibility determination be made under the more re-
strictive guidelines of Congressional Methodology, using this form
of needs analysis, after you project a loss of approximately $2 mil-
lion in Stafford Student Loan Program funding, and that is going
to have to come from our own institutional funds.

Second, the use of base year earnings to compute the require-
ment contribution for dependent and independent students is, in
many instances, impractical for trans-cioning from high school to
college, or for the large number of FDU students moving from full
time work to post secondary or graduate education. Base year earn-
ings, in most cases, do not accurately predict academic year earn-
ings. Projected academic year earnings should be used to determine
a realistic student contribution.

To illustrate, let's take the case of a second FDU student, Anna.
She left her job as a full time secretary earning $22,000 a year to
return to school full time. Her projected earnings this coming aca-
demic year from part time work are $4,000 and yet her required
contribution for aid purposes is figured unrealistically on the basis
of the $22,000 salary.

Of course, processicilal judgment introduced in the reauthoriza-
tion has given financial aid administrators greater flexibility in de-
termining student eligibility. It's a commendable tool in that the
financial aid officers expertise can be utilized in individual cases
such as John's and Anna's for general implementation if the Con-
gressional Methodology needs analysis formula doesn't result in a
true representation of the students real need.

But, I must note that professional judgment is a labor intensive
and costly process at FDU, given the large number of students who
must be reevaluated under this process.

Moreover, since there are no uniform guidelines concerning the
exercise of professional judgment, some aid administrators may be
hesitant to use it.

Third, Congressional Methodology's treatment of veterans' bene-
fits is inconsistent from one Veterans' Administration program to
another. As it stands, only 3 of the numerous VA programs are in-
cluded in the Congressional Methodology Formula. As a result, the
Aid Officer must determine for each individual package, what por-
tion of benefits were included in the needs analysis and what por-
tion must be used as a resource.

In closing, I will summarize these issues with respect to Congres-
sional Methodology in that, in our view, they need redress. We
need to see relaxation of Stafford Student Loan Needs Analysis
Guidelines to enhance middle income student participation. Equita-
ble methods to determine the dependent students level of need. The
elimination of base year earnings and the reintroduction of project-
ed earnings for the determination of needs and clear and consistent
treatment of veterans benefits.

The reauthorization and Congressional Methodology could be
steps in the right direction, as far as streamlining and making the
financial aid process equitable and fair.
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I am sure that Congress did not anticipate the extent to which
its reform efforts would harm certain groups of students and I
would submit to you that your original goals and objectives can
still be accomplished if the aforementioned inequities are effective-
ly addressed. Thank you.

STATEMENT OF EDWARD J. BLOUSTEIN, PRESIDENT OF
RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW JERSEY

Mr. BLourrEIN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, lady and
gentlemen of the committee, I am very pleased to be here as a rep-
resentative of The State University of New Jersey.

You asked about the impact of Congressional Methodology and
my views on the future of federal financial aid and I have to con-
fess it's unlike my colleagues here today, we are not prepared yet
to make a statement as to what the impact of the new Congression-
al Methodology will be on our students. We think that our incapac-
ity to make a prediction is in part a function of the Congressional
decision to implement its methodology without previous testing.

It's also a function, as I'm sure you're well aware, of the com-
plexity of the three grant and three loan programs, college work
study, and the several efforts in graduate assistance which now
constitute federal student assistance.

Legislation over the years has so encumbered these programs
and regulations have done likewise, so it has become impossible to
predict the impact of change on their structure or on the student,
as far as we're concerned.

Now these aid programs were put together, as you know better
than I, over a period of time, one without regard to another and
they are now difficult now to understand, expensive to administer
and leave many of our students with an unconscionable level of
debt.

I think that Congressional Methodology is a symptom, rather
than anything else and I urge that Congress no longer mend and
patch these programs, but that you use the next reauthorization to
start afresh, write on a clean slate. I am certain that my presiden-
tial colleagues throughout the country and in the financial aid
community will have much to say about student aid as you begin
that reauthorization process, and that is where I look forward tv
many of the difficulties referred to here this morning being reme-
died.

I would like to turn, for the rest of my testimony this morning,
briefly, to the subject that Congresswoman Roukema raised and
that is the work requirements in the pending systEm and I would
like to make what might be a radically new departure in that
regard.

I would like to suggest that the committee consider some form of
mandatory community service program for all students as part ofthe financial aid program.

Higher education already, as many of you know, makes impor-
tant contributions to teaching the virtues of sharing and caring butI propose that we do more. I propose that we look at community
service as a necessary component to the learning experience which
a college education should provide
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I am proud as can be of the several hundred Rutgers students
who now work in the Rutgers Community Outreach Program, tu-
toring students in the inner city schools, assisting in hospitals,
serving meals to those who cannot serve themselves, arcing as tour
guides at local museums and engaging in many other forms of com-
munity service.

I urge that we consider going one step further by making service
to others a requirement of the undergraduate degree by tying the
administration and financial support of the program into the finan-
cial aid structure of colleges and universities.

Now I am sure that everyone will agree that community service
would contribute greatly to the communities in which our colleges
and universities live and are nourished. In these terms, student
commitment to community service would constitute a partial
return to the common weal of what they receive.

Such service, as part of an undergraduate rducation would have
a broader significance, however. It would constitute a valued ingre-
dient of liberal education.

It would help educate our students to the world of the sick and
the aged and the world of the deprived and the disposed, a world
which looms before us and which we can no longer continue to ne-
glect, except at our moral and political peril.

Even if we are to suppose that some portion of the student body
might undertake it unwillingly, without compassion or with dis-
dain for its ethical qualities, it would find justification in the ex-
pansion of the horizons of feeling and experience that it would
afford.

Would it be very different from requiring our students to read
and write in terms that some of them will never thereafter have
need or appreciation for. .

Why not an introduction into social and cultural literacy reflect-
ing our time and place as well as an introduction into mathemati-
cal, aesthetic, or historical analysis?

I want to make it clear, I am suggesting that community service
programs would be organized separately on each qualifying campus
in the country, not a single national program administered at the
federal level. It would take place during the course of an under-
graduate education and not constitute a new commitment of an-
other period of time in the lives of our students. It would be re-
quired as a condition of graduation for all students but might serve
as a work study requirement for all students on financial aid. It
could then be justifiably administered and financed, in part, by fi-
nancial aid funds.

Now, I have not thought through all the implications of such a
program of community service nor have I fully considered how it
would relate to financial aid programs in the nation.

It does seem worthwhile to me, however, that we consider, as
part of our financial aid structure, a requirement of work and that
this work might take the form of community service. This repre-
sents the kernel of what I propose in this regard.

I respectively suggest that this Committee establish a commis-
sion of distinguished citizens, served by competent staff, to address
in detail the theory and implementation of the kind of program of
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community service tied to our financial aid system, which I have
proposed here today.

Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to answer any questions you
might have.

[The prepared statement of Edward J. Bloustein follows:]
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TESTIMONY TO TETE SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION
HOUSE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR

June 20, 1988

Mr. Chairman:

I am Edward J. Bloustein, President
of Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey.

You have asked about the impact of
Congressional Methodology on Rutgers students and for my views on the
future of federal student aid.

I cannot provide a precise statement
on what changes will come t., our students from the recent policy
decisions you and your colleagues have made in legislating
Congressional Methodology. This University, together wi h much of ths
national higher education community, estimatea some decr.ase in student
eligibility, but further information must wait until September when you
and our students, together, learn for the first time what Congressi-nal
Methodology has accomplished.

This lack of precise information is,
in part, a function of the Congressional decision to implement its
Methodology without previous testing.

It is also a function of the
complexity of the three grant and three loan programs, College Work
Study, and the several efforts in graduate assistance, which now
constitute federal student assistance. Legislation and regulations
have so encumbered these programs that it has become impossible to
predict the impact of change on their structure or our students.

These aid programs were put together
over time, one without regard to the other. They are now difficult to
understand, expensive to administer, and leave many of our students
with an unconscionable level of debt.

Congressional Methodology ta a
symptom and I urge that Congress no longer mend and porch these
programs but use its next reauthorization to start fresh.

I am certain that my Presidential
colleagues and our associations will have much to say about student aid
as you begin the reauthorization process.

I would now like to turn to what
would be a radically new departure in financial aid administration. I

suggest that the Committee consider some form of mandatory community
service program for all students as part of the financial aid program.
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Risher education already makes
important contributions to teaching the virtues of sharing and caring,
but I propose that we do more. I propose that we look at community
service se a necessary component of the learning experience which a
college education should provide.

I am extremely proud of the several
hundred Rutgers students who now work in the Rutgers Community Outreach
program--tutoring students in the inner city schools, assisting in
hospital., serving meals to those who cannot serve themselves, acting
as tour guides at local museums and engaging in many other forms of
community service. I urge that we consider going one step further by
making service to others a requirement of the undergraduate degree and
by tying the administration

and financial support of the program into
the financial aid structure of colleg s and universities.

Everyone would agree, I am sure,
that community service would contribute greatly to the communities in
which our colleges and universities live and are nourished. In these
terms, student commitment to community service would constitute a
partial return to the commonweal of what they received from it.

Such service as part of an
undergraduate education would have a broader significance, however. It
would constitute a valued ingredient of liberal education. It would
help educate our students to the world of the sick and the aged, the
world of the deprived and dispossessed, a world which looms before us
and which we can no longer continue to neglect except at our moral
and political peril.

Even if we were to suppose that some
portion of the student body might undertake it unwillingly, without
compassion, or with disdain for its ethical quality, it would find
justification in the expansion of the horizons of feeling and
experience it would afford. Would it be very different from requiring
our students to read end write in terms some of them will never
thereafter have need or appreciation for? Why not en introduction into
social and cultural literacy, reflecting our time and place, as well as
an introduction into mathematical, aesthetic, or historical analysis?

I want to make it clear that I am
suggesting a community service program which would be organized
separately on each qualifying campus in the country. not a single
national program administered at the federal level. It would take
place during the course of

an undergraduate education, and not
constitute a new commitment of another period of time in, the lives of
our students. It would be required as a condition of graduation for
all students, but might attye es a work -study requirement for all
students on financial aid. It could then be justifiably administered
and financed, in part, by financial aid funds.

I have not thought through all the
implications of such a program of community service; nor have I fully
considered how it would relate to the financial aid program of the
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Nation. It doss seem worthwhile to me, however, that we consider as
part of our financial aid

structure a requirement of work, and that
this work might take the form of community service. This represents
the kernel of what I propose.

I suggest that this Committee
establish a commission of distinguished citizens served by a competent
staff to address in detail

the theory and implementation of the kind of
program of community service, tied

to our financial aid system, which I
have proposed here today.

I am happy to take your questions.

Edward J. Bloustain
President

Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey
June 20, 1988
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STATEMENT OF DR. VERA KING FARRIS, PRESIDENT, RICHARD
STOCKTON STATE COLLEGE

Dr. FARRIS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I too wish to say how
very pleased I am that you are here to hear the testimony on this
very important topic.

What I have to say will not differ substantially from my col-
leagues, although because of the differences in my school, some of
the impacts are slightly different.

I am pleased to address the Committee today, not only as the
President of Stockton State College, but also as a member of the
New Jersey Student Assistance Board which oversees our state
grant and scholarship programs. In both of these capacities, as
President and on that Board, I can speak with pride of our achieve-
ments in provitling aeLess and opportunity through affordable tui-
tion and generous st, e financial aid to a variety of students of dif-
ferent ages, backgrounds and entering level? of ability.

First, let me -peak as a college president for a minute and tell
you about the federal student aid decline at Stockton State College,
especially over the last three years. We have about 3,950 full time
undergraduates this year, an increase of about 200 students since
1985. Ours is one of the colleges that are showing an increase in
students while at the same time increasing the SAT and the minor-
ity population in our schools. So, has been very significant to us
to look at how to go about helping Viese students find a way to pay
tuition and to come to school.

In 1985, about 800 of these students received Pell Grants. This
year, only about 650 Pell Grants were received. In 1985, over 1,000
Stockton students were eligible for Guaranteed Student Loans.
This year that number was cut in half to about 500 students. Three
years ago, my students had about $3.7 million available in federal
student aid funds; this year with 200 more students paying higher
costs, these student were eligible for $1.5 million less in federal
aid. About $200,000 of those dollars were lost in Pell Grants and
the rest in student loans. Three years ago, 500 students at Stock-
ton, with family incomes over $30,000 qualified for student loans.
This year there are less than 200 left in the student loan program.
Have all of these students become less newly overnight? The State
of New Jersey doesn't think so. Three years ago, the state provided
over $1 million in grant aid to about 1,000 stunts and this year,
they added $200,000 more to that in order to offset the local prob-
lems.

The major New Jersey student aid program is the Tuition Aid
Grant, the TAG program. The maximum awards in the program
are adjusted annually to cover full tuition at all public colleges for
low income studente. In the coming year, New Jersey will be pro-
viding full tu:tion TAG grants to students who can qualify for only
$400 in Pell Grant aid. New Jersey, on the other hand, will be pro-
viding $400 TAG grants at our public 4 years institutions to stu-
dents who will no longer even be eligible for federal student loans.

The eligibility criteria for depenePnt students in the Tuition Aid
Grant program have been based on uniform methodology need
analysis, because we believe it is a fair system. Last fall, the Stu-
dent Assistance Board debated for quite awhile whether to adopt
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the congressional method for its New Jersey Grant Programs. The
analysis by the Department of Higher Education showed that if we
did so, 40 percent of our current dependent TAG recipients would
have had their awards reduced or eliminated entirely next year.
The total loss to students would have been about $6 million or
about 15 percent of the funds available to the students. Of course
we will not do this and will not adopt the Congressional Meth-
odology.

mThe ain problam has been stated by colleagues as being created
by assessing prior year student earnings instead of assuming a flat
$700 to $900 summer savings contribution. The more the student
has earned to help pay for college, the more that student's money
is reduced through the congressional method. This is not a brilliant
way to inspire a work ethic among our young people, particularly
those poor and minorities who have never had the experience of
learning what the great American work ethic is all about.

It is bad enough that the congressional method has created a
system that punishes students for trying to help themselves and
their parents by working and earning more during the summers
and while attending school. The really invidious aspect of the new
financial aid system is that will not allow colleges, states, foun-
dations or anyone else to supplement the maximum allowable aid
determined by the federal need formulas. The "need" determined
by Congressional Methodology is fixed. If we want to give addition-
al aid from non-federal sources. then the federal aid must be re-
duced by the same amount. This is devastating to many of the stu-
dents.

To give you an example, at Stockton, we have a plan to allocate
a $100,000 of college funds for tuition relief programs to supple-
ment the available federal and state aid. One half of the funds
would be awarded as merit scholarships, the other half to the dis-
advantaged students under the EOF program. In many cases the
only way we can award these additional funds to students is by not
giving them any campus based federal aid. Otherwise, we would be
forced to use the congressional method which would produce an ex-
pected family contribution larger than the amount of the tuition
relief which is intended to reduce the family's contribution in the
first place. I urge you to go back to the fixed $100 to $900 summer
savings contribution. Even more important, you must remove the
strait jacket from the financial aid system by allowing colleges to
eetermine an expected family contribution appropriate for their
students.

In ending, you must allow us to return to a financial aid system
which gives colleges the right to exercise a certain amount of dis-
cretion through general policies rather titan just on a case by case
basis. We understand that you allow the professional judgment, but
our quest for financial aid, particularly in the public colleges, is
very small. I, for one, have 3 professional staff members and there
is no way that they can go through the thousands of financial aid
applications which must be processed on a case by case basis in the
manner that would be required through the congressional method.
At a large university, the task would be unthinkable. Thank you
very rilich.

[The l -Tared statement of Dr. Vera King Farris follows:]
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Statement of Dr. Vera King Farris

President, Richard Stockton State College

on

The Effects of Congressional Methodology

On Student Assistance

Before the House of Representatives
Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education of the

Committee on Education and Labor

June 20, 1988
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I have the privilege of addressing this committee both as
the president of Stockton State College, and as a member of the
New Jersey Student Assistance Board which oversees our state

grant and scholarship programs In both capacities I can speak
with pride of our achievements in providing access and opportuLi-
ty through affordable tuition and generous state financial aid to
a wide variety of students of different ages, backgrounds, and
entering levels of ability Someday I hope to be able to speak
with equal pride of a growing federal commitment to higher
education through a student assistance policy that supports the
efforts of colleges and states to maintain affordable educational
opportunities

Let me speak as a college president for a moment and tell
you about the federal student aid decline at Stockton State
College in just the last three years. We have about 3,950
full-time undergraduates this year. an increase of about 200
students since 1985. In 1985 about 800 of these received Pell
Grants; this year there were only about 650 Pell Grants. In 1985
over 1,000 Stockton students were eligible for Guaranteed Student
Loans; this year that number was cut in half to about 500. Three
years ago my students had about $3.7 million available in federal
student aid funds; this year 200 more students, paying higher
costs, were eligible for $1.5 million less in federal aid. About
$206,000 was lost in Pell Grants and the rest in student loans.
Three years ago 500 students at Stockton with family incomes over
$30,000 qualified for student loans; this year there are less
than 200 left in the student loan program. Have all of these
students become lees needy overnight' The state of New Jersey
doesn t think so. Three years ago the state provided over $1
million in grant aid to about 1,000 Stockton students, and this
year they received $200,000 more.

The major New Jersey student aid program is the Tuition Aid
Grant (TAG) program. The maximum awards in the program are
adjusted annually to cover full tuition at all public colleges
for low income students. In the coming year New Jersey will be
providing full tuition TAG awards to students who can qualify for
only $400 in Fell Grant aid. New Jersey, on the other hand, will
be providing $400 TAG grants at our public four year institutions
to students who will no longer even be eligible for federal

student loans!

The eligibility criteria for dependent students in the
Tuition Aid Grant program have been based on Uniform Methodology
-eed analysis, because we believe it is a fair system arrived at
by a broad consensus of the national financial aid community.
Last fall the Student Assistance Board had to decide whether to
adopt Congressional Methodology or New Jersey grant programs.
The analysis by the Department of Higher Education showed that if
we did so, 40% of our current dependent TAG recipients would have
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had their awards reduced or eliminated entirely next ye.. The
total loss to students would have been over $6 million or about
15% of the funds currently available. Of course we will not do
this, and we will not adopt Congressional Methodo'ogy

The main problem, as you know, has been created by assessing
prior year student earnings instead of assuming a flat $7C3/900
summer saving contribution The more the student has earned to
help pay for college, the more you reduce that students' aid
eligibility. What a brilliant way to inspire a work ethic among
our young people!

It is bad enough that Congressional Methodology has created
a system that punishes students for trying to help out their
parents by working and earning more during the summers and while
atte.,iing school. The really Invidious aspect of the new finan-
cial aid system is that it will not allow colleges, states,
foundations or anyone else to supplement the maximum allowable
aid determined by the federal need formulas. The "need" deter-
mined by Congressional Methodology is fixed. If we want to give
additional aid from non-federal sources, then the federal aid
must be reduced by the same amount.

This year at Stockton, for example, we have a plan to
allocate $100,000 of college funds for a tuition relief program
to supplement the available federal and state aid. One half of
the funds will be awarded as merit scholarships, the other half
will be used to cover the college costs of aome of our neediest
disadvantaged students in the Educational Opportunity Fund
program without requiring them to borrow. In many cases the only
way we can award these additional funds to students is by not
giving them any campus-based federal aid; otherwlse we would be
required to use Congressional Methodology which would prod'ice an
Expected Family Contribution larger than the amount of the
tuition relief which is intended to reduce the family's contribu-
tion in the first place.

Perhaps you find this as bewildering as I do It all boils
down to this: a system has been created that won't allow stu-
dents to help themselves and won't allow colleges to help stu-
dents beyond some imaginary and arbitrary federal definition of
"need " The unfathomable formulas which supposedly take into
consideration every particular family circumstance to produce the
exactly correct Expected Family Contribution - down to the last
dollar - are in fact based on totally arbitrary assumptions.

Expected Family Contributions and Student Aid Indexes are
nothing more than devices to ration limited funds. Since Con-
gress will not increase student aid funds to keep up with rising
college costs, aid must be rationed crt in smaller doses to fewer
students. That, of course, is the real purpose of the Congres-
sional Methodology s assessment of dependent student earnings. I

don t agree with it, and I urge you to go back to the fixed
$700/900 summer savings contribution. Even more important, you
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must remove the straitjacket from the financial aid system by
allowing colleges co determine an Expected Family Contribution
appropriate for their students. Congressional Methodology should
be used only as another aid index to determine eligibility for
the federal programs, not a way to prevent us from helping
students more than the fede. government feels is necessary.

Of course, you have given us some flexibility through the
exercise of "professional judgement," which is helpful in indi-
vidual cases But you must realize that our small financial aid
offices are already overworked and barely able to keep up with
the constant changes in program regulations. Even at a midsized
college like Stockton it is simply not feasible to review in
detail every one of the thousands of financial aid applications
which must be processed At a large un.versity the task is
unthinkable

You must allow us to return to a financial aid system which
gives colleges the right to exercise a ce-tain amount of discre-
tion through general policies rather than jus' on a case by case
basis.

Thank you
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Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you. I want to recognize the presence of
Congressman Hayes, who I mentioned would be here shortly after
the hearing started. Sure enough, we're delighted to have you with
us Charlie.

Let me turn first for questions to my colleagt e from New Jersey.
Mrs. RouttEstA. Mr. Chairman, thank you.
Doctor Bloustein, let me ask a clarification. Has Rutgers not yet

made an estimate or do we have some kind of indication of the
kind of student that would be affected here?

Mr. BLOUSTEIN. We have a preliminary estimate that there will
be some significant impact. We cannot give, at this juncture, we
cannot give a precise figure.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Do you have an understandingand I'm going to
ask this question of all four of our panel heredo you have some
understanding of the default rate that comes from your graduates
and whether that has been steadily increasing or on the decline?

Mr. BLOUSTEIN. We think our default rate is relatively modest
and that it has been relatively stable.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Doctor Brugel, I was wondering it you can give
just a brief report on what you have found to be the problem in
New Jersey and how New Jersey attacked the problem on the de-
fault rate?

The reason I am going into the default rate is because I just
think we have got to exam:ne whether or not there is any correla-
tion here. In any event, would the funds that are going into default
have direct relationship to the monies that are freed up for annual
appropriations, whether it be for Poll Grants or student loans?

Mr. BRUGEL. Several years ago, we began a program of school
audits as a result of the very high default rate that we determined
at 30 institutions and-

Mrs. ROUKEMA. These were primarily what kinds of institutions?
Mr. BRUGEL. Primarily proprietary institutions though some

from the traditional 4 year sector were also there and we found
through our program reviews that indeed there was a considerable
lack of attention at a number of these institutions through record
keeping and through their administrative requirements associated
with the program. We have moved to the point of either limiting or
suspending 6 institutions to date from the program.

The issue with load defaults is one that, as I know New Jersey
has already provided testimony to this committee, that comes
about as a function of having a reduced period of grace now where
one point has been 9 months, it is now 6 months and default is pri-
marily an experience of the poor, those who are poorly prepared
and those who are not enrolling in four year or collegiate pro-
grams.

The New Jersey experience, I'm very pleasedI was just at an
authority meeting of the New Jersey Higher Education Assistance
Authority this morningour default rate following the federal cal-
culation was 2.11 for the State of New Jersey so far for this fiscal
year. I'm very pleased with that.

The default rate has been declining in New Jersey as a result of
the Rule Review Program, I think primarily because many of the
institutions who were affected moved their business from New
Jersey guarantee agency to a national guarantor. Of course it
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doesn't resolve the problem for the nation because they will then
have a very high default rate for that guarantor.

Mrs. RouxEmA. Doctor Donaldson.
Mr. DONALDSON. For our university, as a whole, the default rate

is well below the level that has been defined by the Department of
Education as a danger zone, though I think it is increasing and t7..e
reason it is increasing is related to what I was saying earlier.

First, students are, Dr. Bloustein said, being forced to take on an
unconscionable level of debt as the aid component in federal pro-
grams shrinks and as more and more of our middle income stu-dents

Mrs. RotmczbiA. You mean grant programs?
Mr. DONALDSON. Grant programs, yes, I'm sorry. And as more

and more of our middle income families become ineligible, even for
the loans, it means that the loans are being given primarily to the
poorer students and these are the ones, as Dr. Brugel said, that
have a higher tendency to default.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Doctor Farris.
Dr. FARRIS. We have a very very low default rate at Stockton.

Stockton, I'm sure everyone here knows, is a very young school and
it is a very innovative school and one of the things that is part of
our training of the students is to work with them very early on to
understand what it means to default on these kind of things and
we have a person that we hire that does nothing but work with
making sure that the students know to reimburse their- -

Mrs. RotixEmA. All right, I would like to go on now to something
that each one of you has referenced and that is the student earn-
ings. The question is: I have heard some observers of Congressional
Methodology, both the schools as well as staff people, suggest that
this is just an anomaly of the first year of institution of the Con-
gressional Methodology and if there is a base line established, after
the Freshman year, then the high earnings of the previous year
will no longer show up. It suggests a blip of the first year because
prior to entering college, they probably, on average, earned more
per year. Did you get the point? So the observation is that perhaps
this is only a first year blip and after we get into the program,
these students become sophomores and on up, then all we really
have to do is involve ourselves with the first year. Does that sound
sensible to you or is that a naive misunderstanding of how the
system w mks over the four year period with respect to real live
students and their work experience and the potential for income?
Miss Farris?

Dr. FARRIS. I think it's a naive judgment as to what will actually
happen. Many of the very poor students who have never had an
opportunity to even work because they didn't have the right back-
ground but they go to college and they get jobs and they are able to
work and try to take in earnings, to sometimes help their families
so that they can stay in school because their families may, indeed,
have sufficient difficulties, that it would not be possible for them to
stay in school and so they work. They work very hard. I know our
students, a large number of them work part time and an even
larger number work full time even though they are full time un-
dergraduates, 18 and 19 years of age.
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Mrs. ROUKEMA. Thank you. Doctor Donaldson, would you like to
comment?

Mr. DONALDSON. Well every student, of course, has a first year of
being under the Congressional Methodology. That student that I re-
ferred to who went from being a full time secretary to being a full
time student still has quite a struggle the first year when her base
year is that former salary. I know, because she's my former secre-
tary and I know what it costs her. Su sure, in the second year,
when she is a sophomore, there will be less problem because the
base year will become her freshman year, but that doesn't mini-
mize or eliminate the difficulty of the first year.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. So you think there should be an absolute cap?
Mr. DONALDSON. Well, I think we should use the projected aca-

demil year formula as opposed to the base year formula.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. I see. Its not a cap.
Dr. FARRIS. I prefer it to flat.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. Dr. Brugel.
Dr. BRUGEL. To argue that this is merely a start up problem and

that it will go away, I think ignores the fact that if it goes away, it
will go away becatme many students will also. I find it as a congeni-
tal flaw in the program that we have created that really should be
addressed.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Dr. Bloustine. I think what we're talking about is
making available more money to students who need money. I find
something anomalous about the old system that just estimated that
return without any regard to the actuality and I think come combi-
nation of the two would be fairer to the system and fairer to all of
the students who need out of the system.

Mr. Chairman, I may have used up my time, but I do want to ask
one more question, that is particularly important here, I think gen-
erally in New Jersey, but certainly throughout Northern New
Jersey and it is something that Dr. Brugel refereed to, in Commis-
sioner Hollander's testimony that was submitted.

I don't know that you stressed it as much in your oral testimony,
but I would like to hear the comments from all of you on this ques-
tion. That is, the use of assets, and particularly acute here in our
area is the use of home assets with the inflation in real estate I
suppose it's not unique to New Jersey but it is particularly acute.
As Commissioner Hollander put it, it takes a lot more money to be
poor in New Jersey or to be middle class in New Jersey than it
does in a lot of other places.

We have had tremendous inflation in real estate values in New
Jersey and I suspect that is going to cause quite a bit of hardship
in terms of the ability to have cash flow for these middle class and
lower middle class families when next year comes around and their
eligibility is determined. Whoever would like to comment on that, I
would like to hear you, because this is a very difficult problem for
us on this panel to address. It's a sticky wicket.

Mr. BRUGEL. Prior to reauthorization, Guaranteed Student Loan
eligibility cotti be determined through what were then called the
"Look Up Tables." And the Leuk Up Tables had no reference to
assets. With the introduction of the full bore methodology, the uni-
form methodology or the Congressional Methodology, then there is
reference to assets. The family home is the major asset for most
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families and indeed that does work a hardship in establishing loan
eligibility. Most families are unwilling to borrow against the assets
they have in their home and it is indeed a problem.

One could argue that it would make a good deal of sense for loan
eligibility to totally discount the asset that one holds in their home.

Mr. BLOUSTINE. I come out on both sides of this. It does seem to
me to be wrong headed to make a family that has saved and built
an asset, pay heavily for that asset, and let a profligate family
achieve the same thing that the family who worked hard to main-
tain that asset.

On the other hand, it seems to me equally wrong not to take into
account at all that that is an element of need and I think some
combination, some ceiling has always appealed to me.

Mr BRUGEL. It might be appropriate to use that for grants, but
to ignore that as part of the loan eligibility.

Mrs. ROUILIDAA. That's interesting. Dr. Donaldson.
Mr. DONALDSON. I agree with you, Congresswoman Roukema,

that many families in northern New Jersey are house poor, that is
if you look at them on a balance sheet taking the market value of
their homes, they appear to be quite wealthy, but the only way
they could tap into that is move to some other part of the country,
sell their house because if they tried to get another one around
hereI'm sorry.

Mrs. ROUICEMA. Or take a second mortgage.
Mr. DONALDSON. And I'm afraid that the temptati -)ri created by

the current tax code of taking this home equity is another danger-
ous trend because many people whose actual earnings are not good
enough to support that are now going to be in danger of losing
their homes because they are trying to translate this asset into
cash for their children's education.

Dr. amis. As you know, Stockton is not in north Jersey, but in
southern New Jersey and in southern New Jersey we have the dif-
ficulty of enormous growth that has come about as a result of the
casino industry coming about there and the fluctuation of the cost
in housing is frightful from here to here. You can seen it balloon-
ing with the same problem that my esteemed colleague, President
Donaldson, just mentioned and which you so wisely noted yourself.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you. Mr. Hayes.
Mr. HA/Es. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. One of the advantages of

being late wasI should really be quiet, I guess. It's difficult be-
cause this is an important issue b. "me the committee.

I would like to ask one question that I would like to get some
response to from each of the pailAists.

Has the federal methodology resulted in a decline in enrollment
of economically disadvantaged students, have you noticed?

Mr. BLousnot. Our best evidence Congressman, is that there has
been no decline at all. In tact, our enrollment application rate has
risen markedly. Enrollment is a budgeted number rather than a
market number, so we can't tell anything about how many have
been enrolled, but the application rate has risen.

Mr. BRUGEL. If I might, Congressman, the methodology is one
that is only going into effect for those students who would be en-
rolling this coming September. So consequently for newly admitted
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students, I don't think they would really have had an understand-
ing of what the previous arrangement was and for returning stu-
dents, frankly they haven't had a chance to drop out yet.

Mr. DONALDSON. I think Mr. Brugel puts it very well. Our enroll-
ment here at FDU is going up this coming fall, but I don't think
that's a consequence of any change in student aid formulas yet and
I think we will feel the consequences later on and probably more
significantly among the lower middle income than the most disad-
vantaged.

Dr. FARRIS. I agree with what my colleagues have said. It is a
little early to tell and I think though that no one should be fooled
by the fact that most of the colleges are desperately interested.
They may be certain that there are ways for the disadvantaged to
go to school and those that are in the lower middle income. So I
think there is increased help too So that it will be interesting to
watch to see how rapidly that help can be built against how rapidly
the decline will occur because of the new funding methodology.

Mr. HAYES. One of the criterions used to justify change is one
that my colleague, Mrs. Roukema, mentioned, the default on stu-
dent loans. We have found out or at least I have, that one of the
main reasons for default is the shift from the grant program, Pell
Grants to loans. Some of the economically disadvantaged groups
should not have been given a loan in the first place, but there was
no money through the grant programs, so in order to offer that op-
portunity for higher education, they went and got the loans.

Mr. BRUGEL. Congressman, I have no doubt that that'swe see
evidence of that, marked evidence of that and it's outrageous.
We're fooling ourselves, as a nation, but we're not only fooling our-
selves, but we're putting recipients of those loans in a very, very
difficult and precarious position,

Mr. HAYES. You mentioned, ; think, Dr. Farrie, that you re-
ceived, Stockton University, 800 Pell Grants in 1985 while this
year, it has been reduced by 150. Given the kind of funds you oper-
ate under, these Pell Grants, the reduction you will have, I suspect
that maybe next year it will go down even more. So this means
that you obviously are going to hay.1 less, resulting in fewer stu-
dents being able to attend?

Dr. FARRIS. That's right. And the saddest thing is that one of
the goals of our college and our theme and our mission has always
been access and quality. And so the college has worked very hard
to attract and to retain middle income minority students of which
the number was quite small some years ago and is just beginning
to grow to a substantial number and that is the area which I feel is
going to be hardest hit and it's very worrisome to me as to what
would happen to those people.

Mr. HAYES. You just concluded that Congressional Methodology
should be used only as another aid index to determine eligibility
for the federal program, not as a way to prevent us from helping
students more than the Federal Government thinks is necessary.
You were quite clear what you said.

Do you other three panelists share that statement?
Mr. BRUGEL. Definitely.
Mr. DONALDSON. Absolutely.
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Mr. BLouvrINE. As I say, I would like to see some combination of
the two at work.

Mr. HAYES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My time is up.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Mr. Petri.
Mr. Pr's'. First, just one comment on the problem of inflation

that is felt in my part of the country by farmers. They haven't had
land inflation lately, sad to say, but they had enormous investment
and not much cash flow sometimes and so they don't qualify for
these loans and sometimes are in the same situation.

They put everything back into their business year after year. It's
not reached the point where they are harvesting the fruits of their
labors and their kids are going to college, so they have to increase
their debt. There are a number of facets to this problem.

I just wondered if I could ask President Bloustein a question
about his idea about community service programs, which is an in-
triguing one. Congress has tried to do that some. We give student
loan forgiveness for student service in the Armed Forces or the Re-
serves after graduation so they can repay their country. That gives
them access to education by helping to defend, their country. Also
for work in rural areas, by medical professionals and for work in
certain areas of education, such as programs for the handicapped
students can have their loans forgiven.

So it's a concept that has been supported in certain narrow
areas.

You have work study too, which isn't necessarily to help disad-
vantaged people, but sometimes it is and students do that, but I am
interested when you say that it would be required as a condition of
graduation for all students and I guess I'm asking, by whom? Do
many colleges currently, of their own volition, which they would be
free to do, require that students do a certain amount on communi-
ty service work? I didn't realize that you had to swim to get a
degree and I just wonder if there are some colleges that do this?

Mr. BLousTEIN. There is no college in the nation, Congressman,
that I know currently have that requirement. I am not sure my
university will undertake it. I am going to urge it before the facul-
ty of the university and if it becomes a universal requirement then
I think there is a possibility that if it would serve also as a formal
work requirement for financial aid, it would become more reasona-
ble and more justifiable.

I also think it would represent, for many local communities,
where this assistance would be provided, a form of financial benefit
of the financial aid system which is now not otherwise available,
but no one has adopted it, to my knowledge.

Mr. PETRI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Questions that I might have asked, had I used the

Chair's prerogative and began asking questions, they have all now
been asked.

I'll dismiss this panel with our thanks for your help.
For our next panel, we're pleased to have each of you with us.

Francine Andrea is the president elect of the New Jersey Associa-
tion of Student Aid Administrators. We're pleased to have you with
us. Please begin.
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STATEMENT OF FRANCINE ANDREA, PRESIDENT ELECT, NEW
JERSEY ASSOCIATION OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AID ADMINIS-
TRATORS

Ms. ANDREA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the
committee.

It's a rare opportunity one has in representing views of 250 dea-
cated professionals as I am today as president-elect of the New
Jersey Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators, as
well as my own institution, Drew University, where : am Universi-
ty Director of Financial Assistance regarding the effects of Con-
gressional Methodology on student eligibility for federal aid pro-
grams.

Over the years, our membership has worked diligently at pre-
serving the fundamental principles established at the beginning of
its Student Assistance Programs, that of a fair and equitable treat-
ment for all recipients of federal aid, always committed to the prin-
ciples of access and choice.

This year, through Congressional Methodology, in speaking with
students and parents, it has become apparent that the analysis in
its present form may inadvertently prove to be detrimental to
those principles that we so dearly supportaccess and choice.

The entering student who applies for assistance soon shall be re-
ceiving information regarding eligibility which may be misleading.
This is due to the calculation using 70 per-ent of their base year
earnings. Though verifiable, in most cases, bas:: year income is not
an accurate predictor of their academic year earnings.

It may eventually be interpreted by the public as a disincentive
to work. For every dollar that a student earns, they could lose 70
cents in aid. Are we double counting earnings and with the meth-
odology, the way it stands, are we double count;ng savings? Aid of-
ficers are currently addressing this problem by utilizing their pro-
fessional judgment on a case by case basis. The initial correspond-
ence may also reflect ineligibility for a Pell Grant or other federal
assistance which may cause needy students to become discouraged
and not pursue their educational objectives.

Two categories identified by Congressional Methodology, dislocat-
ed worker and displaced homemaker, in creating a separata need
analysis have complicated an already complex system. Students
and parents inadvertently check off a category for which they feel
they are qualified, without clearly understanding the intent of Con-
gress in classifying these areas. This action automatically invokes
the use of projected year income, initially, possibly misrepresenting
the family contribution. We suggest that these categories be ad-
dressed through professional judgment to avoid generating yet an-
other need analysis calculation.

The NJASFAA supports the concept of a simple need analysis.
However, the current analysis has confused many students and
parents, especially since they do not know whether they qualify.
This analysis has not met its goal of proving an improved delivery,
a system for low income families, because the requirements that
they file a 1040A or a 1040EZ form, many poor students and fami-
lies must complete the long form due to scholarship assistance,
pensions, businesses and other income. These families are auto-
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matically excluded from the calculation and they are indeed the
neediest. Perhaps this analysis should be tied to the families' ad-
justed gross income rather than the particular form they file. As
the evaluation of this formula continues, we also suggest that inde-
pendent studez::8 without children not receive this preferential
treatment for reasons of equity and fairness.

One recurring issue is the ambivalent treatment of parents in
college in the need analysis formula. This has been proven time
and time again to significantly decrease the family contribution for
high income families, while having virtually no impact on low
income households. This has the affect of shifting scarce federal re-
sources from our neediest to high income applicants. We suggest
the removal of the parent in college allowing indi ridual case by
case review, professional judgment by the aid administrator when
warranted.

We thank Congress for recognizing our vital role in the higher
education arena through legislating our long used professional
judgment. We would hope that all interested parties, Congress, the
Department of Education, the financial aid community and the
processors will work together over the next few years to evaluate
and construct working models of suggested methods of implementa-
tion.

In order to accomplish your intent of fair and equitable treat-
ment for all students while recognizing unique family circum-
stances, some allowances must become standard factors in the need
analysis system, allowances similar to the revised interpretation by
the Department of Education regarding the dependent care allow-
ance. This will assist in reducing the confusion that already exists
throughout the country.

Currently, it is extremely difficult for entering students and
their families to make informed enrollment decisions. Aid officers,
due to the complexity of the Congressional Methodology, are
unable to provide thorough and accurate student consumer infor-
mation. The above suggestions and modifications may assist in this
difficulty.

We truly appreciate the opportunity of sharing our views and
concerns regarding this analysis as it relates to students and par-
ents. We look forward to forthcoming modifications that will con-
tinue to allow access and choice to students pursuing higher educa-
tion. But please, ii you can, consider some of these changes for the
current year. They will not take effect until 1990 and 1991 and if
that is not addressed, then we may not see changes for our stu-
d Its until 1991. Thank you.

ufhe prepared statement of Francine L. Andrea follows:]
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CONGRESSIONAL POSTSECONDARY SUBCOMMITTEE HEARING

IMPAL OF CONGRESSIONAL. METHODOLOGY
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TEANECK, NEW JERSEY
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Testimony by:
Francine L. Andrea, President-Elect
New Jersey Association of Student
Financial Aid Administrators

It as a rare opportunity one receives in representing the
views of two hundred and fifty dedicated professionals as I am
today as President-Elect of the New Jersey Association of Stu-
dent Financial Aid Administrators (hereafter NJASFAA) as
well as my institution Drew University regarding the effects
of 2ongressional Methodology on student eligibility for fedE,ral
aid programs.

Over the years, nur membership which is comprised of four
year public, priva e, community, grad.,te and professional
and proprietary sch.ols, has worked ci igently at preserving
the fundamental prat iples established :n the beginning of the
student assistance pr-irams, tnat of fair and equitable treatment
for all recipients of i...leral aid. The association is always
committed to the principles of access and choice.

This year through implementing Congressional Methodology,
in speaking with students and parents it has become apparent that
the analysis in its present form may inadvertently prove to
be detrimental to those principles which we so dearly support,..
.. access and choice. The entering undergraduate and graduate
students who apply for assistance are initlly receiving inform-
ation regarding their eligibility which can be misleading because
of the use of the 707. base year earnings to compute their
contribution. Though verifiable in most cases, base year income
is not an accurate predictor of academic year earnings. It may
eventually be interpreted by the public as a disincentive to work
under Congressional Methodology. For every dollar that
student earns they could loos,. seventy cents in aid. Are we
expecting last year's earnings to pay for this year's expenses'
Are we double counting earnings or savings' Aid officers are
currently addressing this problem by ut07ing their
professional judgment on a case by case .is, not using base
year income, then opting for minimum cchrtribution or the
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reported projected yaa income. The initi-1 Corr sondence
may also reflect ineligibility for a Fell Grant or other
federal assistance which may cause needy students to become
discouraged and not pursue their educational objectives.

We applaud Congress for attempting to recognise through
the ana'ysis the special needs of non-traditional students.
Under the previous formula, Uniform Methodology, married stu-
dents usually were not eligible for any federal assistance in-
cluding Guaranteed Student Loans. However, since these students
are the prime beneficiaries of their education, we suooest some
modification to the formula be considered that would result
in a more equitable treatment of their assets vie a vie other
types of students.

Two other categories identified by Congressional Methodc-,100,.
dislocated worker and displaced homemaler in creating a separate
nerd analysis for them has complicated an already comple s.stem.
Students and parents inadvertently checl off a category to.- whet,
they feel they qualify without clearly inderstandino the intent 04
Congress regarding these classificatice,s. This action auto
matically invokes the use of projected rear income
misrepresenting the family contribution. Therefore. we suonest
these categories be addressed through p-ofessional Judome,tt
to avoid generating yet another need analysis calculation.

NJASFAA supports the concept of a simple need analysis.
However, the current analysir, has confused many students ano
parents especially since they do not know whether they indeeo
qualify. Simple Need Analysis has not met its goal o4 providing
an improved delivery system for low income families brzause n4
the requirement that they file a 1040A or 1040E7 tat form.
Many poor students and families must complete the long 104u
form due to scholarship assistance, pensions, business and
other income. These families are automatically excluded from
the simple calculation when they are indeed the neediest. Per-
haps this analYsis should be tied to the family's adiusted gros
income rather than the particular form the family and/or student
completes. As the evaluation of this formula continues, we
suggest that independent students without children not receive

preferential treatment for reasons of equity and fairness.

Depending on family status, Veterans benefits are used in-
consistently. We recommend for simplicity the elimination of
Veterans benefits from the Pell Grant Family Contribution
Schedule and Congressional Methodology, thus allowing Veterans
benefits to be considered as a resource.

One reoccurring issue is the ambivalent treatment c4 pa.ert_
in colleye in the need analysis formula. This has been proven
time and time ',vain to Significantly decrease the 4amil, contribk.t-
ion for high income families, while having Virtually nc impact
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on low income households. This has the affect o4 shifting
scarce federal resources from our neediest to high income
applicants. We suggest the removal of the parent in college
allowing individual case by case review, professional Judgment
by aid administrators.

On a positive note, we thank Congress for recognizing our
vital role in the higher education arena through the legislating
of professional judgment. We would hope that all interested
parties, Congress, the Department of Education, the Financial
Aid community and the processors will work together over the
next few years to evaluate and construct working models of
suggested methods o': implementation. NJASFAA has taken the lead
.n this area, holding a two day workshop for aid officers across
the State in assisting them in developing a better understanding
of their professional discretion.

In order to accomplish your intent of fair and equitable
treitment for all students while recognizing unique family
situations, r-,me allowances must become standard factors in
the need ana ysis system. Allowances, similar to the revised
ante-pretation by the Department of Education regarding the
dependent care allowance, 'Ill assist in reducing the confusion
that currently e2ists throughout the country.

Currently, it is extremely difficult for entering college
and graduate students and their families to make informed enroll-
ment decisions. Aid officers due to the complexities within
Congressional Methodology are unable to provide thorough and
accurate student consumer information. The above suggestions
and modifications would resolve this difficulty.

In closing, NJASFAA fully endorses the interim report
issued to Congress by the Advisory Committee on Student Financial
Assistance. We truly appreciate the opportunity of sharing our
views and concerns regarding this analysis as it relates to
students, parents, and other aid administrators throughout
the nation. We look forward to forthcoming modifications that
will continue to allow access and choice to students pursuing
higher education.

3
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STATEMENT OF MICHAEL S. KATZ, UNIVERSITY DIRECTOR OF FI-
NANCIAL AID, UNIVERSITY OF MEDICINE AND DENTISTRY OF
NEW JERSEY

Mr. Kim. When I was invited to give testimony on Congression-
al Methodology, the first thing I did was call upon my colleagues in
graduate and profession al education to solicit their opinion. Nor-
mally you would expect a variety of perspectives from a number of
professionals, however, this is not the case. There was a consensus.

There are three urgent issues that need to be addressed with
regard to Congressional Methodology and the determination of fi-
nancial need of graduate and professional students.

Today I want to thank the committee for giving me this opportu-
nity to present both the concerns of my profession and those of
graduate and professional students. I want to thank Congress for
recently providing clarification on the matter of t1.-e dependent
care allowance which resulted in adjustments to the Department of
Education's interpretation of the law allowing financial aid officers
to make across-the-board changes for students in this category
without documenting each case.

My first issue can be described as the standard maintenance al-
lowance versus the student expense allowance. Prior to Congres-
sional Methodology, an independent student with dependents
would come into my office and I would sit down with him or her
and construct a budget that would include all direct and indirect
costs associated with the student's attendance in school during the
academic year. When we finished, we had a total picture of that
student's overall expenses. Using Congressional Methodology, fi-
nancial aid officers are only allowed to consider the indiv.dual stu-
dent's expenses apart from the expenses of his or her famil. Oa)
then are we allowed to take into account family support throu
standard maintenance allowance.

This brings up a whole range of problems. The standard mainte-
nance allowance is based on national standards and does not re-
flect regional and local differences and cost of living. The end
result is that the present method of calculating financial aid for a
student with a family is no longer a clean process that reflects that
student's individual reality. Furthermore, because of the student
only rule, we cannot publish clear accurate budgets to help and
inform and guide students with families toward their goals. Our
effort in achieving the government's con n with consumerism in
the financial aid process becomes strait.. ' In we cannot adver-
tise this information clearly th,-ouji. 0,1 . Lcial aid handbooks,
catalogs and brochures.

Although adjustments to tilt. .-tondaru mainterance -,1lowance
though professional judgment are ossibie, the process is clumsy
and tedious even though the end resui: may, in fact, be the same.
Let's recognize cost of attendance on the expei.Qe side of the equa-
tion and not on the side that analyzes ability to pay.

The second major issue is base year income versus projected year
income. Prior to Congressional Methodology, in calculating an inde-
pendent student's 'bility to contribute tov ard his or her education,
the financial aid officers would utilize the student's projected aca-
demic year income. Under Congressional Methodology, we are re-
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quired to consider the student's income for the calendar year prior
to enrollment, or base year. An increasing number of students are
coming to graduate education later in life in the hope of starting a
second career. This means that they often have base year income
and often have a family. However, like the rest of us, they consume
most of their income and have no surplus to carry into their educa-
tional year. So the end result i:, a distortion; financial aid calcula-
tions from a base year figure are founded on an illusory number.

Finally, there is the issue of "professional judgment" itself which
is related to the two issues previously discussed. The distortions
and balances created by the base year income as well as other
areas in Congressional Methodology requiring across the board
changes creates problems that financial aid officers must compen-
sate and correct in the only way available to them, case by case.
However, this is hardly a viable solution, and ultimately raises two
great fears for us.

First, there are so many students in like circumstances that if we
adjust them all, as we must, we will create a mountain of paper-
work all in the name of skirting a bad regulation. Second, since we
will have to utilize our professional judgment far in excess of what
I believe Congressional Methodology anticipates, will the Depart-
ment of Education then cite us, in their audits, for making across
the board decisions, as we fear they will.

Let's not delay the processing of aid beyond the point of reason-
ableness. My solution to these problems which will help tailor the
Methodology to all sectors, basically consist of returning to delivery
systems that are accurate and efficient:

(1) Allow financial aid officers to construct realistic budgets that
reflect the true cost of education. (2) Analyze ability to contribute
on the basis of projected yet, income for dependent students. (3)
Give financial aid officers clear au.,hority to make across the board
decisions at their discretion.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee for
giving me this opportunity.

[The prepared statement of Michael S. Katz follows:]
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Committee on Education and Labor
Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education

Hearing on Congressional Methodology
FairiMgh-Dickinson University

Teaneck, Now Jersey
Jun* 20, 1988

Testimony of Michael S. Katz
University Director of Financial Aid

University of Medicine and DentIshy of New Jersey

My name is Michael Katz, and I am the University Director of Financial Aid for
the University of Medicine and Dentis y of New JerseyNew Jersey's statewide
health care, education, research, and services system.

When I was invited to give testimony on Congressional Methodology, the firs:,
thing I did was call upon my colleagues in graduate and professional education to
solicit their opinions. Normally you would expect a variety of perspectives from a
number of professionals; however, this was not the case. After all was said and
done, Were was a conseniuswe had all independently, and then concurrently,
come to the conclusion that there are three urgent issues that need to be addressed
with regard to Congressional Methodology and the determination of financial need
of grciduate ere. professional students. Today, I want to thank the committee for
giving me ti is rare opportunity to present both the concerns of my profession, and
indirectly represent the larger concerns of a group that I feel strongly about
namely the graduate and professional students in New Jersey and their economic
and career concerns.

As a way of getting into the subject, and starting on a positive note, I want to thank
Congress for recently providig clarification on the matter of the Dependent Care
Allowance which resulted in adjustments to the Department of Education's
interpretatic.i of the law. Prior to this clarification, if an independent student with
dependents did not receive the full benefit of the standard maintenance allowance,
financial aid officers were neither able to compensate for the existence of the
shortfall, nor take into account its severity in determining eligibility for financial
aid programs. As a recult, in cases where income was actually less than family
maintenance, the formula did not take into account the reality of a negative
balance Thie inequity - -which only increased the hardship of low-income
stude- .,s- -did not originate in congressional intent, but instead, was the result of
the Department of Education's misinterpretation of the law. After extensi-ie
lobbying by financial aid officers around the country resulting in Congressional
clarification, the Department of Education reversed its position and ruled that
financial aid officers could indeed make adjustments and across-the-board
changes for students in this category without documenting each case.

At this point, I ask the members of the committee to remember the terms
"professional judgement" and "across-the-board" for they figure prominently in
my presentation of the three major points of my testimony. While you have helped
us win a victory in regard to the Dependent Care Allowance, in all other situations
we are restricted to using our "professional judgement" strictly on a case-by-case
basis.

46.
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My first issue can be described as Standard Maintenance Allowance versus the
Student Expense Budget. Prior to Congressional Methodology, an independent
student with dependents would come into my office and I would sit down with him
or her and construct a budget that would include all direct and indirect costs
associated with the student's attendance in school during the academic year.
When we finished we had a realistic appraisal - -a total picture of that student's
overall expenses for the year. This budget, moreover, would have been constructed
in conjunction with information obtained from surveys of t..,e student body and
Bureau of Labor Statistics on cost of living. (The formulation of student budgets is
a scientific, well-documented procedure, implemented by the Financial Aid
Office.) From this realistic budge I souls! then make a realistic allocation of funds
to heln that student realize his or her goals.

Using Congressional Methodology, financial aid officers are only allowed to
consider the individual student's expenses apart from the expenses of his or her
family. Only then are we allowed to take into account family support through a
Standard Maintenance Allowance. This brings up a whole range of problems.
The Standard Maintenance Allowance is based on national standards and does not
reflect regional and local differences in costs of living. The cost of rent, utilities,
and food in suburban Nev Jersey just isn't the same as it is in Ohio.

The end result is that the present method of calculating financial aid for a student
with a family is no longer a "clean" process that reflects that student's individual
reality. Furthermore, because of the "student only" rule, we cannot publish clear,
accurate budgets to help inform and guide students with families toward their
goals. Our effo-t in achieving the government's concern with "consumerism" in
the financial aid process becomes strained when we cannot advertise this
information dearly through our financial aid handbooks, catalogs, and brochures.
Although adjustments to the Standard Maintenance Allowance through
professional judgement are possible, the process is clumsy and tedious, even
though the end result may in fact be the same. I am recommending we clean up
the process. Let's recognize cost of attendance on the expense side of the equation
and not on the side that analyzes ability to pay.

My recommendation is clear and simple. let's return to a method of budget
construction that worked so well for everyone.

The second major issue is Base Year Income versus Projected Year Income.
Prior to Congressional Methodology, in calculating an independent student's
ability to contribute toward his or her education, financic aid officers would utilize
the student's projected academic year income. Under Congressional Methodology,
we are required to consider the student's ince ne for the calendar year prior to
enrollment, or base year. An increasing number of students are coming to
graduate education later in life in the hope of starting a second career. This
means that the) often have base-year income and often have a family. However,
like the rest of vs, they consume most of their incbme and have no surplus to carry
into their educationa, years. So the end result is a distortion financial aid
calculations from a base-year figure are founded on an illusory number.

Again, my recommendation is simple: let's dispense with Base Year Income and
return to a system that we know more accurately reflects the ability to pay.

Finally there is the issue of "professional judgement" itself which is related to the
two issues previously discussed. With the Dependent Care Allowance as the only
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exception, financial aid officers are allowed to exercise their professional
discretion only on a case-by-case basis, not in an across-the-boarl fashion. The
distortions and imbalances created by the Base Year Income as well as other areas
in Congressional Methodology requiring across-the-board changes creates
problems that financial aid officers must compensate for and correct in the only
way available to them: case-by-case. However, this is hardly a viable solution, and
ultimately raises two great fears for us. First, there are so many students in "like
circumstances" that if we adjust them all, as we must, we will create a mountain
of paperwork all in name of skirting a bad regulation; second, since we will have
to utilize our professional judgement far in excess of what I believe Congressional
Methodology anticipates, will the Department of Education then cite us--in their
audits--for making across-the-board decisions, as we fear they will? If this is to be
the case, I suggest that an audit of the auditors will be necessary: that is, when the
Department of Education comes in and holds us accountable for our decisions,
Congress, through the use of the Advisory Committee on Student Financial Aid,
will in turn hold the Department of Education responsible for correctly, clearly,
and consistently interpreting the law.

Let's not delay the processing of aid beyond the point of reasonableness. My
solutions to these problems, which will help tailor the Methodology to all sectors,
basically consist of returning to delivei, systems that are accurate and efficient. 1)
Allow Financial Aid Officers to construct realistic budgets that reflect the true cost
of education. 2) Analyze ability to contribute on the basis of projected year income
for independent Students. 3) Give financial aid officers clear authority to make
across-the-board decisions at their discretion.

These regulations, as they now stand, so clearly fly in the face of the economic
reality of graduate students, and clearly are bucking the societal trend toward
older, non-traditional students. Congressional Methodology, a system that was
tailored for undergraduates, fails to accommodate the particular needs of the
graduate or professional student population.

Thank you Mr. Chairman and members of the committee for giving me this
opportunity to testify.
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STATEMENT OF MICHAEL J. BENNE1T, DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL
AID, VETERANS AFFAIRS, BROOKDALE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Mr. BENNETT. On behalf of New Jersey's community college
system, 19 institutions serving over 100,000 students, I would like
to extend a warm welcome to New Jersey and thank you for this
important opportunity to express our views on how Congressional
Methodology has affected s;udent eligibility.

As you are aware, community colleges are open access institu-
tions whose low cost, convenient location, and individualized ap-
proach encourage :many low income families to choose our institu-
tions so that they may gain the knowledge and skills necessary to
become informed, contributing citizens of our society.

The students of these same low inconv? families have worked in
many instances to assist with family living costs only to discover
the Congressional Methodology will initially assume that 70 per-
cent of their prior year earnings are available for college costs.
Further, if these same students save their entire prior year earn-
ings, the methodology will assess the earnings at 105 percent, 5
percent ir-Te than was actually earned.

Within our sector, 55 percent are independent students and we
have discovered the prior year earnings are not an accurate predic-
tor of academic year earnings. Further, we're finding that profes-
sional judgment must be exercised in 42 percent of these cases and
recommend that the Committee cons:der increasing the Pell ad-
ministrative allowance in order that we may address this burden.

Another administrative created by Congressional Methodology is
the treatment of veterans benefits. The Department of Education
currently requires that 100 percent of veterans benefits be consid-
ered as a resource and Congressional Methodology treats veterans
benefits inconsistently, including or excluding in the computation
of family contribution various types of VA benefits depending on
the student's dependency status, family status and analysis type.

The Department of Defense and Veterans' Administration has
projected that 10 percent of community college enrollment will be
veterans who receive some type of VA entitlement by 1992. We rec-
ommend that the la., be amended to specify that all Veterans Edu-
cational Benefit Programs should be used as a direct resource in
computing the student's financial need. We also support the con-
cept of simplification and a simple needs test for low income fami-
lies and recommend that independent students without children
should not be eligible for the simple reeds test sir le this eliminates
their assets from analysis. We remain optimistic that one applica-
tion which reflects the goal of application simplification will be de-
signed, released, and evaluated on a yearly basis.

Finally and most important, we urge the committee to petition
for a realistic, timely and fully funded approach to training. In
light of the numerous changes, it is disturbing to note that since
1981 there has been a 65 vercent reduction in the number of pro-
gram reviews and only 1.5 percent of the department's $20 billion
budget for the last year was allocated for department employees
who travel to institutions to complete program reviews and conduct
training sessions.
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It is our recommendation that the Department of Education au-
thorize a Peer Review Program similar to the program being uti-
lized by the Department of Health and Human Services in which
financial aid officers would visit the campus of their colleagues to
collectively identify and explore solutions to common problems. We
feel this approach to program review fosters a closer and genuine
partnership between the Department of Education and our finan-
cial aid community.

In closing, we eagerly embrace our role at the human element in
a mechanized process and view professional judgment as the cor-
nerstone of oui profession. As a group, we regularly meet to moni-
tor our uses of professional judgment and are confident that re-
search will support our belief that those closest to the problem can
provide the best solution and service to our students. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Michael J. Bennett follows:]
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Subcommittee on Postsecondary Education

Impact of Congressional Methodology
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TESTIMONY

On behalf of New Jersey's community college system. nineteen
institutions serving over 100.000 students. I'd like to extend a warm
welcome to New Jersey and thank you for this important opportunity to
express our views on how Congressional Methodology has affected
student eligibility

As you are aware. community colleges are open access institutions
whose low cost. convenient location and individualized approach.
encourage many low Income families to choose our institutions so that
they may gain the knowledge and skills necessary to become Informed
contributing citizens of our society The students of these same low
income families have worked. In many Instances, to assist with family
living costs, only to discover that Congressional Methodology will
initially assume that 70% of their prior year earnings are available
for college costs Further. if these same students save their entire
prior year earnings. the methodology will assess the earnings at 105%.
5% more than was actually earned!

Within our sector 55% are independent students and we have
discovered that prior y-ar earnings are not an accurate predictor of
academic year earnings Further. we're finding that professional
Judgement must be exercised in 42% of these cases and rocommend that
the Committee consider Increasing the Pell Administrative Allowance
in order that we may address this burden

Another administrative burden created by Congressional
Methodology is the treatment of Veterans Benefits The Department of
Education currently requires that 100% of Veterans Benefits be
considered as a resource and Congressional Methodology treat,. Veterans
Benefits Inconsistently including or excluding in the computation of a
fa,lily contribution. various types of VA benefits depending on the
student's dependency status family status and analysis type The
Department of Defense and Veterans Administration has projected that
10% of community college enrollment will be veterans who receive some
type of V A entitlement by 1992 We recommend that the Jaw be
amended to specify that all Veterans Educational Benefit Programs
should be used as a direct resource in computing a student's financial
need We also support the concept of simplification and a simple
needs test for low income families and recommend that Independent
students without children should not be eligible for the simple needs
test. ,,ince this eliminate,. their asets from analysis We remain
optimistic that one application which reflects the goal of application
simplification will be designed. released. and evaluated on a yearly
basis
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Finally, and most important. we urge the committee to petition

for a realistic. timely. and fully funded approach to training In
light of the numerous changes, it I, disturbing to note that since 1981
their has been a 65% reduction in the number of program reviews and
only 1 St of the departments S20 billion budget for last year was
allocated for department employees to travel to institutions to
complete program reviews and conduct training sessions

It is our recommendation that the Department of Education
authorize a Peer Review Program similar to the program being utilized
by the Department of Health and Human Services In which financial aid
officers would visit the campus of their colleagues to collectively
identify and expiate solutions to common problems We feel this
approach to program review fosters a closer and genuine partnership
between the Department of Education and our financial aid community

In closing. we eagerly embrace our role as the human element in a

mechanized process and view professional !,,id^ement as the cornerstone
of our profession As a group we regularly meet to monitor our rises
of professional judgement and are confident that research will support
our belief that those closest to the problem can provide the best
solution and service to our students

11 ix! g cenriit-
Michael J Bennett
Director of Financial Aid/

Veterans Affairs
Brookda 1 e Community College
Lincrort. NI
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Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you. Our thanks to each of you.
Miss Andrea, are the department reviews and training helpful to

you?
Ms. ANDREA. If they were conducted in calendar format, and we

had the opportunity to take advantage of them. I think, as Michael
has stated, there have been a few training sessions this past year,
but the decline over the last 5 years has been very great and we are
training ourselves in many instances.

For example, the New Jersey Association did a two day work-
shop on professional judgment to assist our colleagues in under-
standing the use of an informal discussion of professional judg-
ment.

Now the national association has also been working strongly in
coordinating a training format throughout the country so that we
can all participate. So we have not seen training from the depart-
ment, but we are creating it, in other ways.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Mr. Katz. Same question.
Mr. KATz. I agree with Fran that training is somewhat minimal

and I think particularly in the State of New Jersey, where it is a
rather small state and the group of financial aid professionals are
a rather close knit organization. We tend to work with each other
and train ourselves and get together in small groups as well as our
professional association to do what needs to be done.

Mr. WILLIAMS. As limited as it is, is the DOE training helpful?
Mr. Kim. It has not been that helpful in the past. There is room

for significant improvement.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Mrs. iioukema.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. Let me just follow up. Do you think it's because

of lack of resources or is it because of the approach? If it's the ap-
proach, do you agree with Mr. Bennett that a peer review approach
would be more beneficial to you?

Ms. ANDREA. I think you're looking at two things. I think pro-
grammers use one thing and training is another. I think a pro-
grammer's view can be of assistance and work closely with the de-
partment in reviewing our operations and how we should be con-
ducting ourselves if, by chance, we are not. I think training is defi-
nitely another issue.

With changes in analysis and processes, we then are the trainers
of the students and the parents and to insure that we are doing the
job that we are to be doing, the department should be participating
in a much larger extent with us and the National Association in
training programs throughout the country. I think resources have
been a problem, yes.

Mrs. Roux Em.A. Mr. Katz is shaking his head, yes. What about
you, Mr. Bennett, do you essentially agree with that?

Mr. BENNETT. Sure. I think that, as Fran has indicated, we look
to the department for leadership in this area and if you look at the
complexity of the process and not to have a good solid training
component there is going to create frustration and problems.

Mr. KATZ. I would just like to continue on that point a little bit
because in addition to training, I think we do have to zero in on
the program process and the recormendation that was made,
which is one that is sort of near is the processes by the Department
of Health and Human Services is one that is very helpful and I
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think the concept of ser 'ling out financial aid officers to work with
fellow financial officers and review each other's programs and
guide each other is very helpful and it has worked for many years
in the Department of Health and Human Services, and I think we
should look to that end.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. I think this is on a related question, but I guess
there is an area here on which we all have, let me just say paren-
thetically, agreement that there is consensus on the question of the
veterans benefits on the base year, there seems to be clear consen-
sus there.

But now, going back to this, I have a question mark here in what
you stated, Mr. Katz, I don't understand it and maybe it's related
to the discussion that we just had.

The standard maintenance allowance, through professional judg-
ments are possible. This is the sentence I don't understand: "Let's
recognize the cost of attendance on the .....friense side of the equa-
tion and not on the side that analyzes ability to pay."

Mr. KATz. Prior to Congressional Methodology, if we were con-
structing a student expense budget for an independent student
with a family, we would recognize all the expenses associated
direct and indirect expenses associated with the cost of attendance
for that student and his or her family.

With Congressional Methodology, the recognition of that family,
rather than being on the expense side of the equation, is through
the allowance of the maintenance of that family on the income side
of the equation, so therefore we are recognizing the student's
family by saying, well, if your income is x, we're going to reduce it
by y and the balance, simplisticall; .;peaking, is what is available
for the upcoi dng academic year.

There's a whole host of reasons why that doesn't work, the pri-
mary one, I think, is very difficult if we were constructing, for ex-
ample, a student catalog or handbook and advertising what it costs
to attend New Jersey medical schools. We would be required
through Congressional Methodology to advertise and discuss with
students and families the cost of that one student or that one aca-
demic year. We would not be able to discuss a married student
budget or a single parent budget, what we would really be zeroing
in on would be just the student's cost, period.

And then attempt to explain the existence of your family will be
handled by analyzing your income and the ability for you to con-
tribute.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Thank you very much. I don't think I have any
further questions except I do appreciate the fact that you have
noted the regional differences should be taken into consideration in
terms of cost of living.

I will resist the temptation to go into the default question with
the community colleges. If you would like to submit that in writ-
ing, I would be happy to receive that. I happen to think that New
Jersey has done an excellent job, so we'll leave that for now, Mr.
Chairman. Thank you.

Mr. Wm Thank you. Mr. Hayes.
Mr. HAYEb. Mr. Katz, I notice you are the Director of Student Fi-

nancial Aid, University of Medicine and Dentistry. Can I get a
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sense of the total number of the students enroi.ad and a breakdown
of minority students?

Mr. Katz. There are 6 schools within the university, 3 medical
schools, a dental school, a graduate school of bio medical sciences,
an undergraduate school of health related professions. The total
enrollment is approximately 2,200 students and the minority en-
rollment varies dramatically from school to school.

For example, at New Jersey Medical School, the minority enroll-
ment is about 25 percent. At the school of health related profes-
sions, it's more like 75 percent and at the other medical schools
and the dental schools varies between 5 and 10 percent. So, it's dif-
ficult to look at that number on E university wide basis because it
does vary so much from school to school within the university.

Mr. HAYES. A critical development, I think, is a critical -portage
of doctors and denthits, particularly in the minority community
and I think it's going to get worse with this change of methodology.
It scares me a little bit. I don't know if you share that opinion.

Mr. KATz Well, I do except without offering any propaganda
about the University of Medicine and Dentistry, we have a rather
large, strong minority program and we have a sizeable scholarship
program and although recruiting is a national dilemma, it's not a
particularly difficult problem at the University If Medicine and
Dentistry.

Mr. HAYES. Miss Andrea, you mentioned in your statement, it in-
terests me, you said one recurring issue is th' ambivolent treat-
ment of the parents in college need-analysis fcL 'Alla arid you con-
cluded that this inclusion of parents in the formula is going to be
at the expense of the needy students. Do you care to elaborate on
that a little bit?

Ms. ANDREA. Yes. A few years ago the College Scholarship Serv-
ice had done a study and I think they could speak, particularly to
that study better than I can.

But, in that study, their conclusion was that a parent in college
was not fair treatment to students across the board when it came
to determining elif 9:ility.

A perfect example is a family with 3 in college. Three is now
used in the formula where the one cor ribution is divided by 3 to
determine what each individual person's contribution is. In doing
so, you are not renewing or looking at whether a parent has the
education funded by the employer, whether in full or in partial and
you are giving that entire benefit to that family without that
knowledge.

This really has no hearing on the low income family, but it gives
an advantage to the higher income family if the parents can afford
to go to school, if they are not being assisted by their employer and
they then gP+ the full benefit whereas the low income family they
may not b... 3 afford to enroll at all and that is he difference.

If we did ii km a case by case basis, we would be using our discre-
tion based on the documents provided by the family. If a parent is
not funded y another institution or from another source, we could
consider tL , parent as enrolled in college.

What is also important is the methodology right now does not
speak to matriculation so that if a parezi: goes and takes two
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courses but is not matriculating in a program, they are entitled to
the deduction in contributions.

Mr. HAYES. Thank you.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Mr. Petri.
Mr. Prrru Just one question for Mr. Katz. In the last paragraph

of your testimony, you talk about the regulations really not fitting
ve: y well with the economic reality of the Congressional Methodol-
ogy you say, "Congressional Methodology is a system that was
tailored for undergraduates wad fails to accommodate the particu-
lar needs of the aduate r professional student population". Some
of the folks who work on the Congressional Methodology felt they
had at least tried to do that and evidently your testimony is that
they failed.

The protection allowance which is based on the age of the person
could have helped the student to work, and the maintenance allow-
ance which is, again, an effort to tailor it for the needs of non-tra-
ditional students. So, could you expand on that comment so we can
do a better job the next time?

Mr. Kierz. I think the prime concern is with regard to base year
income as well as the family unit and the non recognition of the
student's family. Graduate students art. typically older students
very often returning to school, second and third careers, and that
aspect of the analysis has been removed, the student-only rule that
we are dealing with, and that's rur primary concern.

Mr. PETRI. Let me ask you all or any of you, how parents in New
Jersey are doing at saving some money so that they can contribute
to a greater share of these costs. Is this only a federal problem,
that only the Federal Government should be involved in providing
the bulk of fin :racial aid? Or is it only an institutional problem and
a state problem and a federal problem and not a parental problem?
How are we doing here in New Jersey as parents at saving for chil-
d-en's education?

Ms. ANDREA. What I can say to that can be dealt with in two
ways. I am saving for a one year old, that's a very long way to go.
On the other hand, I think it is an overall issue. I think everyone
is involved in the savings situation that is at 1_4nd right now. We
don't hay., all the federal support that we feel is necessary to assist
our students, and yes, we are trying to encourage our students and
their families to save toward their education. I mean, it's very diffi-
cult and as was stated earlier today, cost of housing in this area
and particularly New Jersey, has made it very difficult on familieo.
They are house poor. Sometimes some of the parents of our stu-
dents are not eligible for home equity loans, so therefore, you
know, we are using discretion and offering an institutional assist-
ance or institutional loans help them meet that part of their desire
to help their son or daughter with their education.

So I think everyone has recognized that needs come from every-
where, the student, the parent, the Federal Government, the state
and the institution, but how much from each source is, I think, the
important issue.

Mr. KATZ. There's no question that the responsibility is a shared
responsibility, but by the time the student arrives at medical
school or dental school, many of those resources are gone and very
often parents tend to disown their children when they enter gradu
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ate school. At that point, they are no longer their responsibility.
That's what we hear so often, they're on their own.

Graduate education is very expensive, particularly health profes-
sion graduate education. You go to an institution like mine, a
public institution, the cost of medical school and all the supplies
and books and in dental school, its dental school accessories are
very costly and saving for undergraduate school is ore issue and
certainly difficult enought, but for going beyond that and awing
for ones graduate education, appears these days to be a near impos-
sibility.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Will the gentleman, yield?
Mr. Perm. Yes.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. What is the average or statistical mode for the

debt with which a studem, graduates?
Mr. Km. The class of 1988, at our university, depending on

which school within the university, graduated with a debt and this
includes prior undergraduate indebtedness, of between $34,000 and
$39,000. Now, that was the average. The range was from as low as
$2,000 to as high as a $107, 000.

Now I'm talking about a public instituti m. If you ask the same
question of someone at George Washington University or George-
town University, the average may be $50, $60, or $70 and the high
end is astronomical.

Mr. WILLIAMS. And you're asking us to make it easier? Do you
see the dilemma we face?

MS. ANDREA. Yes.
Mr. WILLIAMS. We have created a federal plantation of sorts. We

have students into their fifth and shah year after college working
hard for the Federal Government.

Ms. ANDREA. Well, i have a sense of some of the students. At our
institution, we have a theological seminary and obviously any stu-
dent who enters the seminary realize!, what the outcome will be.
That is, the very low income, with the inability to pay that debt
and that's why using base year income is eery crucial to the stu-
dents that I service because it is a disincentive up front to them to
enroll in seminary and there are decreasing numbers within semi-
nary across the country.

But those students are meticulousmeticulous in the dollars and
the budgets they need to calculate in order to make it through sem-
inary studies and they are very cautious as to how much they
borrow, usually never (king 1 full amount of a student loan in one
year.

But what happens is that we are in a dilemma because a family
may have a calculated small need using base year income, when
they do have need for federal assistance, work study, national de-
fense, which is now Perkins Loan and we can award those funds to
those students. We do make it available to them, but now it is on a

Ise by case basis because we'ra using base year income and those
(dents are very careful. They even try to save %rifle they are in

,chool and a lot of them a:e very frustrated by the time they are
finishing their degree.

Mr. WILLIAMS. We thank this panel for your assistance and
thanks for being w:th us today.



Our next panel has joined us. Eric Noehrenberg is a recent grad-
uate of Princeton and a member of the ':dent Assistance Board
and we'll hear from you first and then introduce your two col-
leagues.

STATEMENT OF ERIC NOEHRENBERG, RECENT GRADUATE OF
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY AND MEMBER OF STUDENT ASSIST-
ANCE BOARD

Mr. NOEHRENBERG. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman,
First of all, I would like to thank you, Chairman Williams, Con-

gresswoman Roukema and the other distinguished members of the
subcommittee for allowing me the opportunity to express a stu-
dent's view concerning the important issue of financial aid guide-
lines.

Speaking as a representative of the students of New Jersey and
as a student myself, I cannot stress too highly the deleterious ef-
fects of increasing the students' financial burden as under the Con-
gressional Methodology. In New Jersey, we have striven to main-
tain and even increase access to higher education for students in
our state. As a member of the Student Assistance Board, I have
voted to increase students e!igibility for state assistance so that all
students can have the opportunity to obtain the education which
they need.

The Congressional Methodology, on the other hand, will actually
decrease students' access to higher education. Many students of my
acquaintance are already hard pressed to meet their financial obli-
gation:. under the present uniform methodology.

With the new regulations, these students must not only give up
more of their resources, but their eligibility for aid is decreased.
Therefore, they are being asked to give more money while they are
losing important sources of funding for their education.

Furthermore, the income earned in the summer before the fresh-
man year is taxed twic.., both as income, at 70 percent, and as sav-
ings at 35 percent. Also, what about students who are living away
from home during the summer? They need to support themselves
and cannot possibly save 70 percent of their earnings as required.

Students who arc already on the edge, financially, will be forced
out of higher education by the new regulations. Middle class stu-
dents will be especially hurt si _ce they are most likely to suffer
substantial drops in aid under the new Congressional Methodology.

These more stringent guidelines will also discourage people from
attending college altogether. I have often heard high school seniors
parents express their discouragement when faced with the ever-in-
creasing costs of attending college. They realize that ever their
greatest sacrifices will not be enough to make possille the best edu-
cation for their children. They realize that even their greatest sac-
rifices will not be enough to make possible the best education for
their children.

Their hope is that the government will augment their efforts to
pay for education and help give students the opportunity to reach
their potential. The new methodology will take away that and turn
potential students away from higher education. That, I suggest
would be a great tragedy.
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The new methodology will also hurt certain programs designed
to help complete students educations. I was especially pleased to
hear Congresswoman Roukema's comments about the importance of
work in a student's education.

The cooperative program is such a program but it will also be ad-
versely affected by the new regulations. Many students are now
taking advantage of the co-op program to gain valuable experience
in their chosen fields. The small incomes which they obtain as a
result could, under the Congressional Methodology, reduce or elimi-
nate their eligibility for financial aid. Thus, students would be
driven out of the important and valuable co-op program not due to
a lack of interest or need, but because of the financial constaints
created by the new regulations. Programs such as the Educational
Opportunity Fund and the Garden State Scholarships would be
similarly affected. I think Doctor Ferris spoke to that issue whet,
he spoke.

In conclusion, the Congressional Methodology will reduce access
to higher education for America's students. Young men and women
will not be able to finish or even start college, not because of lack
of ability, but due to lack of funds.

This is not to say that a college education is indispensable for
future success; indeed, not everyone is suited for college study. Yes,
someone with the ability and inclination to pursue higher educa-
tion shorld be encouraged to pursue his or her dream. Does Amer-
ica have so much talent that it can afford to throw away its youths'
future in the name of financial expediency? I, for one, do not think
so.

Now, I would like to address just one or two comments to the
compulsory community service which was brought up by the Presi-
dent of Rutgers.

I can't say I will speak for all students, however. I'll speak for
myself in this case.

I think this would be a very bad idea on practical and philoso'hi-
cal grounds. To begin with, students' educations are very struc-
tured in colleges. They need to study, they need to take classes,
there's a very strong tinn. constraint and adding an additional
burden like this will take awa; from their educations, not add to it.

Second of all, what about working students who need their in-
comes to support themselws ani their families? They cannot afford
the extra time needed for some sort of community service.

And finally, I believe that the compulsory community service
thing as proposed is sort of an involuntary servitude which I am
very much against, philosophically.

If colleges themselves do not believe that this program is educa-
tionally sound, I think that Congress should respect their decisions
and not impose such an alien idea upon them.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Eric Noehrenberg follows:]
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First of all, I would like to thank you,
Congresswoman Roukema, for giving me the opportunity to
express a student's view concerning the important issue
of financial aid guidelines

Speaking as a representative of the students of
New Jersey and as a student myself, I cannot stress too
highly the deleterious effects of increasing the
students' financial burden as under the Congressional
Methodology. In New Jersey, we have striven to main-
tain and even increase access to higher education for
students in our state. As a member of the Student
Assistance Board, I have voted to increase students'
eligibility for state assistance so that all students
have an opportunity to obtain the education which they
need.

The Congressional Methodology. on the other hand,
will actually decrease strLents' access to higher
education. Many students of my acquaintance are
already hard pressed to meet their financial obliga-
tions under the Uniform Methodology. With the new
regulations, these students must not only give up more
of their resources, but their eligibility for aid is
decreased. Therefore, they are being asked to give
more money while they are losing important sources of
funding for their educations. Furtherm're, incxne
earned in the summer before the freshman year is
"taxed" twice, both as income (at 70%) and as savings
(at 35%). Students who are already "%_i the edge"
financially will e forced out of higher education by
these new regulations. Middle class students will be
especially hurt since they are most likely to suffer
substantial drops in aid under the Congressional
methodology.

These more stringent guidelines will also discour-
age people from attending college altogether. I have
often heard high school seniors' parents express their
discouragement when faced with the ever-increasing
costs of attending college. They realize that even
their greatest sacrifices will not be enough ti., make
possible the best education for their children. their
hope is that the government will a7ment their efforts
to pay for education and help give students the oppor-
tunity to reach their potential. The new methodology
will take away that hope and turn potential students
away from higher education. That, I suggest, would be
a great tragedy.
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The new methodology will also hurt certain pro-
grams designed to help complete students' educations.
In particular, the cooperative program could be ad-

versely affected by the new regulations. Many students
are now baking advantage of the co-op program to gain
valuable experience in their chosen fields. The small
incomes which they obtain as a result could, under the
Congressional Methodology, reduce or eliminate their
eligibility for financial aid. Thus, student:- would be
driven out of the important and valuable co-op program
not due to a lack of interest or need, but because of
the financial constraints created oy the new regula-
tions. Programs such as the Educational Opportunity
Fund (EOF) and the Garden State Scholarships would be
similarly affected.

In conclusion, the Congressional Methodology will
reduce access to higher education for America's stu-
dents. Young men and women will not be able ti finish
or even start college, not because of lack of ability,
but due to lack of funds. This is not to say that a
college education is indispensable for future success;
indeed, not everyone is suited for college study.
However, someone with the ab4lity and inclination to
pursue higher education should be encouraged to pursue
his or her dream. Does America have so much talent
that it can afford to throw away its youth's future in
the name of financial expediency? I, for one, do not
think so.

Thank you.
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STATEMENT OF MRS. LORRAINE ANDREWS, PARENT OF TWO
STUDENTS

Mrs. ANDREWS. Thank you. I am here today because I feel the
current methodology used to qualify financial need,: for college stu-
dents is unfair and illogical. Based on my experience, I found that
the present method unduly penalizes parents who live in areas that
have recently experienced great appreciation in real estate values
of their homes, such as in this New York metropolitan area.

The present method fails to sufficiently differentiate between
fixed assets locked in primary residences and those assets that can
be liquidated more easily and without seriously impacting the par-
ents' quality of life and it results in totally illogical reasoning re-
garding the parents' ability to obtain outside loans because impor-
tance is put on assets with little regard shown for the cash flow or
income the parents must live on.

I would like to specifically address these weaknesses as they
relate to my own experience. In January of this year, my husband
and I applied for financial aid for our daughter Hillary who is
graduating next week from Northern Highlands Regional High
School in Allen Dale, that's in Northern Bergen County, here in
Jer, y.

Hillary's top choices of colleges had price tags of $17 to $18,000
per year for tuition, room and board. Back in October, her high
school guid-wce counselor told us she should apply to any school
she wanted to and not to be limited by the consideration of tuition.
Fortunately I had Hillary apply to two state universities as well
with bepe that financial aid would make it possible for Hillary to
attend the private school she had worked so hard to get into.

Unfortunately, in 1987, it was a poor year, financially, for my
husband and myself and a very unusual one. I started a new busi-
ness after the company that I was with closed and my husband
started another business venture after th9 free lance writing con-
tract with his major account was not renewed and we both work
out of our home.

Because we started two new businesses from scratch, our com-
bined income for 1987 was very low. In fact, to make ends meet, we
often had to dip into the home equity line of credit we got two
years before when we renovated our 50 year old house.

After deducting our business expenses, our 1987 income was
little more than the $18,000 tab for a year at one of the private
colleges. Even with these unusual circumstances, we were turned
down for any kind of financial aid from Hillary's top choice of
schools. The reason the large equity in our house. When I person-
ally checked into this reasoning, I was told by the Assistant Direc-
tor of Financial Aid at a Washington D.C. University that they felt
I could borrow on my home equity. That conclusion was ludicrous
and I explained why to this financial aid person.

We have lived in Upper Saddle River in Northern Bergen County
for 18 years, so we have considerable equity in our house, however
we have an original mortgage plus a home equity line of credit
which at the time was just about at its limit. We had no other sig-
nificant assets that we can liquidate except for a modest IRA.
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I explained to the financial aid person that based on my previous
experience as a former mortgage officer, I knew we could not qual-
ify for utiother loan on the house because we both just started new
business and because of our extremely low income in 1987, not to
mention that we already had two mortgages on the house.

In short, the only way we could use the equity on our home was
by selling the The appreciation on my house actually affect-
ed my cash floc ,iegatively with higher taxes and increased insur-
ance.

I explained to the financial aid person that just because one has
the potential to borrow because of equity on ones house does not
mean that one is qualified to borrow. Lend-rs not only look at the
debt-to - equity ratio, but they also consider the income-to-debt ratio
as well. Lending institutions want to knew how the borrower is
going to pay back the loan. They will look at past income and
where the present income is coming from as an indicator or stabili-
ty. They do not want to see self employed people with less than a
year's track record. I told her there there was virtually no chance
that I could get a larger home equity loan at this time.

She agreed with me and she said there was nothing the school
could do because it had to follow a standard methodology set forth
by the Federal Government in assessing to whom they would
award financial aid.

When I asked her what I could do, because I thought this reason-
ing was unsound, she suggested I call my Congressional Represent-
ative, which I did.

In summary, I have found that the present methods for financial
aid qualifications blindly adds a portion of the home equity to the
parent's income. It does not consider the parent's ability to qualify
for outside loans. It seems to assume that just because you have
considerable equity in your primary residence, you can get financ-
ing. This is naive thinking. It is penalizing the parents who live in
this area.

According to the present formula, if I were living in another part
of the United States and had the same income, I would have had a
better chance of qualifying for financial aid. The present system is
keeping our children out of schools they have worked so hard to
get into. It's affecting the future of our students adversely and un-
fairly.

My daughter is going to a state university this fall because we
cannot afford to sent: her to the school of her first choice which
specializes in the major she wanted to take. I hope our financial
condition continues to improve so that she may eventually take the
courses she wants to study.

I urge you to change this qualifying system to make it fair for all
areas in the U.S. and to consider the overall financial picture of
the parents.

I know I am not alone in my experience, I have heard it time
and time again from other parents who have told me, "You can't
get financial aid because you live in Bergen County." Even my
business accountant told me he does not know of ore person
around here who has gotten financial aid.

In closing, I would like to make a suggestion Corporations have
shown us that the most effective systems are established with the
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input of people from the bottom up. In this case the parents, the
taxpayers. We're the ones who have made this hearing possible
today because the tuition we pay has funded the colleges, their ad-
ministrators and professors. Our taxpayers have funded the gov-
ernment officials.

If there are more hearings on this subject, I hope a broad base of
parents will be given a reasonable opportunity to contribute. I
would like to suggest that for future input, parents be alerted
through local newspapers, high schools and well in advance
and that they be encouraged to write if unable to attend.

Certainly the cross section of input obtained from a larger base
of parents can better reveal the weaknesses in the current system
and I thank all of you for giving me an opportunity to contribute to
your decision making.

STATEMENT OF THERESA CHERESNOWSKY, STUDENT, DREW
UNIVERSITY

Ms. CHEREBNOWSKY. Thank you. I would like to thank you for the
opportunity to speak on behalf of myself, my family and 11 of my
college friends.

I am a junior at Drew University. I am from a family of six with
an income of $50,000. I am the first to attend college and in the fall
my mother and sister will also be attending.

This past year I have been fortunate in that I am the recipient of
a Drew Scholarship as well as federal assistance, Perkins Loans,
work study and Guaranteed Student Loans totalling $10,364. All of
this assistance, however, is not enough. My parents needed my
help in covering the family contributions beyond the $918 which
was my original responsibility.

I applied for financial aid for the coming fall on one of the most
complicated forms I have ever completed and received an acknowl-
edgement from the processor of my estimated contributions and my
parents' estimated contributions. This is where the panic set in. My
contributions jumped from $918 to $1,306 and my parents are ex-
pected to contribute $2,228 for ae and the same amount for my
sister. With paying a mortgage and supporting a family of 6, my
parents suggested that I take a leave of absence for the semester
because we couldn't afford school in September based on the esti-
mate provided by CSS.

I then went to the Financial Aid Office at Drew. It was explained
to me that 70 percent of my base year income was used to calculate
my contributions, thus the jump. I did not realize that I should
have been saving all last year. I used the money to assist my par-
ents to buy a pair of eye glades which I needed and for general
living expenses. I currently do not have that money. I am now
working on a summer work study job on campus trying to save
some money for the fall after paying my room and board.

You might ask: Why aren't I working somewhere else? Well, it's
not in my best interest. if I work elsewhere, 70 percent will be used
next year to pay for my education. The incentive to work is gone. I
feel trapped. I would use just as much of that money as I earned as
I could for furthering my education, but with the system, it's just
not possible.
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In speaking to my 11 classmates, there are constant themes
within our conversations which dealt with the above problems, the
difficulty of completing the financial aid form, the initial informa-
tion that our parents received from the processor and the inability
toprovide 70 percent of their prior year income.

For the sake of time, I would like to concentrate on the last. As a
group, we feel threatened by the new law. We do not understand
Congress' intent. We support assisting and paying for our educa-
tion. However, a more realistic and understanding approach will
assist each of us to obtain our goals. W e should not have a disin-
centive to work. Many of the students are seriously considering
taking a leave of absence in the fall because they cannot afford
their own contributions.

I again thank you for the opportunity to share my views and
those of my classmates with you. I feel privileged to be talking to
you here today. Thank you.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you. Mrs. Roukema.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. Mr. Chairman, I have a sense of deja vous. Char-

lie Hayes and I came into Congress the same time, didn't we Char-lie--
Mr. HAYES. That's right.
Mrs. RouKa' [continuing]. And of course, Pat Williams was al-

ready there in 1981 when we fought the battle of the Student Loan
Program at that time and without detracting from the time of the
panel because we do have questions here, I think there is a point jr
telling a little bit of its history.

I was the first person that said to David Stockman, no, David,
you and the President can't do that. You're eliminating college
access to a whole group of people and you're saying maybe the poor
can go to college and yes, the rich can go to college, but the middle
class, forget it and that was the beginning of our coming to the
needs-based formula that we finally decided upon which did fore-
close high income people who were taking advantage and ripping
off the system, getting low interest rate loans and then putting
their money in money market funds at high interest rates. That
was an abuse of the system and we closed them out with that
needs-based formula that we worked out.

But we wanted to preserve, not only the programs for the poor
but also cash flow fcr middle income people like yourselves.

If we now, Mr. Chairman have created a situation where we are
foreclosing exactly the people that we were intending, when we put
the CM program, Congressional Methodology, in place, then thin
hearing has served a very valuable purpose.

I would like to ask Lorraine because I'm not quite sureby the
way, I wanted to thank Mrs. Andrews, we have never met before,
but I am happy that you called the office. I hope we can help you
out. I don't know whether 3r not we'll be able to for this year, we
shall see.

But you have explained in excruciating detail the problems that
middle income people have with this fixed asset question. Certainly
you have proven what my own conviction was about this. I don't
know whether or not all my colleagues will agree with me on that,
but this is one of the cruxes of the problem, as far as I am con-
cerned.
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But I want to ask the student now, Lorraine and/or EricLor-
raine, did I understand that you were in schoolyes, you were inschool

MS. CHERESNOWSKY. I'm Theresa.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. I'M sorry, Theresa, I meant Theresa.
Theresa, you were in school, were you a freshman or--
Ms. CHEREBNOWSKY. I'll be a junior in the fall.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. Oh, you're going to be a junior.
Ms. CHERESNOWSKY. Yes.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. So what is precisely the decline in student loans?

You no longer qualify, period, is that what you're telling me or is
the decline in your loan program equal to what?

Ms. CHERESNOWSKY. The problem is that students that worked
last summer at a higher paying job and were*. t aware of having to
save for it, those students feel that they might not be able to come
back in the fall because they weren't prepared.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. What do you understand your decline in actual
dollars that you qualify for would be? Are you totally eliminated
from the program or is it just a halving of your loan program or is
it more than that? Do you know?

Ms. CHEREBNOWSKY. I think it's just that the student's contribu-
tion will go up and the loans will go down.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. As a combination?
MB. CHERESNOWSKY. Right.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. So it would prohibit you?
MS. CHERESNOWBKY. Right.
Mrs. ROUKEMA. I would say before you make your decision that

we go into this in a little more detail with someone who is knowl-
edgeable on the subject, your loan officer and someone in my office,
if we could do that. I would hope it's not as difficult a problem( as
you see-.1 to feel.

Eric, would you like to comment on that question?
Mr. NOEHRENBERG. I just graduated so I have not been affected

by this thing personally. I have always been able to talk my way
through to the other members on my committee on student's assist-
ance work

Mrs. ROUKEMA. I do have a question for the students. What is
your wisdom to us concerning the default problem with respect to
students in default? Mother, if you would like to address yourself
to that question as well.

Eric, what is your understanding of the problem? How do you
view it?

Mr. NOEHRENBERG. Actually, I'm glad you brought that up be-
cause the Chancellor and I have talked about this while I was on
the Board and we actually went on Channel 50 at one point to dis-
cuss it.

The problem with the default pnblem in my opinion is the fact
that originally the programs were designed to be grants for the
poor people and the people with less resources, those who were in
middle income and then, you know, upper income don't need as
much.

The problem is that with inflation increasing, like bracket creep
and such, rules being going more and more towards the poor people
with lesser resources and leaving the middle class, they're losing
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their access to them. And the problem with giving many large
loans to the poor people is the fact that they have less resources
and they really don't have their foot in the door that many middle
and upper class people have. Therefore, they have a much harder
time paying them back.

What I would see as a possible solution would be to go back to
the old way of giving the people who don't have many resources
grants, giving them the education. They're going to have a hard
enough time as it is making ends meet. Why increase the burden
and give the loans back to the middle claw for whom they were
originally designed.

Mrs. ROUREMA. The problem with that is tl e price tag. If you
make it an entitlement and some of in; colleagues here would
agree with you, in terms of it being an entitlement there is a price
tag for this.

Mr. NOEHRENBERG. But with the defaults, there is also a price
tag you're going to pay.

Mrs. ROUREMA. Yes, there is, a tremendous price.
Mr. NOEHRENBERG. I would suggest to you that you might as well

give them as grants if they're not going to pay it back anyway.
Ms. CHERESNOWSKY. The problem with default is that right now

you're giving the loans to the lower class who have a history of de-
faulting and not giving to the middle class so everything is really
getting hurt because the middle class who could get jobs and pay
back the loans and add to the economy aren't going to get the op-
portunity to go to school and it is just going to build and make ev-
erybody poorer.

Mrs. ROUICEMA. Mrs. Andrews, do you have any comments?
Mrs. ANDREWS. I don't have any comment, but from listening to

the panelists who seem to be of the same opinion, I would agree
with what they are saying.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Let me go back, though, to what you stated there
concerning the Pell Grants. You see, giving the Pell Grants does
not really resolve the problem in terms of the costs. It's a terrific
cost to the federal treasury and we hpve to accept that and at the
same time the default rate is contributing, as you quite accurately
pointed out, to the deficit. It's taking more than a third, $1.8 billion
each year, but it is more than a third of the whole budget for stu-
dent aid and Pell Grants combined, so we have got to get at the
problem.

But I would nc t agree with you that the answer to the default
rate is to give the money away. There may be other requirements
that can be ft ...paired to pay.

The question is: How many of those students who are drop) g
out, perhaps were enticed to go into programs that they shouldn't
have been enticed to go into? That is another part of the subject,
particularly in the two year and proprietary schools and that is a
problem not only for the students but it's a problem for us in terms
of evaluating and assessing the quality of the proprietary schools
and the programs that they have. Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Mr. Hayes.
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Mr. HAYES. Am I correct in the conclusion, based on your testi-
mony, that all three of you are opposed to Congressional Methodol-
ogy-as it currently stands, is that right?

Mr. NOEHRENBERG. I would agree.
Mr. HAYES. Mrs. Andrews, not knowing anything about the

county setup in New Jersey, at least if I understood your remarks,
you might be able to get a loan if you moved into another county.
What was that?

Mrs. ANDREWS. No, not another county. I'm talking about an-
other area of the country that ha- not experienced the appreciation
of real estate that we have experienced in the past few years. In
other words, if I didn't have as much equity in my house, that por-
tion of equity would have been added to my income to make me
ineligible for financial aid.

I had nothing to do with the equity in my house. It's just because
I wiz here and the environment brought up real estate values.

. HAYES. Yeti have no problem with the stments being able to
get an education through federal assistance who don't even have a
house to use es equity?

Mrs. ANDREWS. I have no problem with that. I have no problem
with that at all.

Mr. HAYES. Because I share your view. I don't know if I under-
stand you. You said that you have lost the incentive to work, yet
you'll need money.

Ms. CHERESNOWSKY. It's not that I don't want to work, i do. I
think that I wouldit's important that I work for my education be-
cause my parents can't afford to pay for' it straight out, but the
problem comes Loin, need somewe're expected to contribute
so much money as a family, part of it is mine and part of it is my
parents and this year particularly, my sister was starting college
and my father didn't know if he would have the x amount of dol-
lars, $4,500 and something in September and he said, get yourself a
good paying job and just save all the money that you can so that
we can have that extra money in the fall.

But, I can't do that this year because I have to save 70 percent of
that money which would become my contribution and it couldn't be
my parent's contribution. I could not use that money for my par-
ent's contribution and that is what I need to do. A good part of the
money that I earn is to make it go for the family contribution.

Mr. HAYES. I turn it back to you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you. Mrs. Andrews, the fixed asset prob-

lem, particularly on homes that you refer to, does not represent a
recent chang), but nonetheless. that is a recent change it the law.
It predates the most recent change in the law. Howevor, you object
to it nonetheless and your objection is understandable.

Had we Ulm% ad your suggestion and reduced or eliminated the
fixed consideration from student financial assistance and let's
say we had done that the year that Presid-nit Re ag n first took
office, the cost to you, as a taxpayer would n Dw be $1,500,000,000.

Too many Americans believe there is c mnectivn between the
ballot box and then what happens in public policy. When you say
to us at the ballot box, cut the deficit :.11-.(1 don't raise my taxes,
BINGO, we do it. We save a $1,500,00,000 by refusing to follow
your suggestion, th. Js one way we did it.
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There is a connection, folks. I think, if I remember right, Fritz
Mondale carried one state and so we're doing what those other 49
states want. We're saving money. We save it in this program and
in that program and fortunately not in every effort do we save
money, but we are saving it.

When we save it on student financial assistance, we don't save it
in a place when. I want to save it, and I vcted against that. Howev-
er, I am not surprised that the majority of members of Congress
will not vote to spend significantly more amounts of money because
people in 49 states said we don't want you to do that. There is a
connection, even though mar. 7 Americans don't believe it, between
the way you vlte and the fact that you then go down to the Stu-
dent Financial Aid Center and they say, "No, Congress says you
have to inl.ale these assets of your home."

So you see the problem not that we don't listen to American's
par ". In this instance we did listen to them.

Wt.. ANDREWS. But don t you agree though that there is a lot of
importance placed on the fixed asset within the home and perhaps
not as much on other assets such as stocks and bonds that could be
liquidated.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Well, that's right, but- -
Mrs. ANDREWS. And also because of the importance on the home

equity, we are penalized because we live in this area.
I want lower taxes too. I don't like to see taxes go sky high

either, but I think all the parents ought to be treated fairly and I
don't think we're being treated fairly here.

I don't want to pay a bill on and a half dollars more, no way and
I am a cesponsible parent. If I don't have enough money to send
my kid to an $18,000 school, I'm not going to send her there, but
please don't penalize me just because I live in this area, and don't
give me excuses that I can go and get a loan when I don't have
the income to afford to get a loan. No lending institution is going
to give ma money for more home equity or another mortgage and I
don't "lave any other liquid assets. That's an insult to my intelli-
gence and I don't care I don't care if I don't get money just as
long as I'm being treated as fairly as everybody else.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Whet would you say to my Montana ranchers
who have ranches as big as your state and resent when we count
those assets, what would you say to them?

They think you got a deal and we're treating them unfairly.
They have multi-millicn dollar spreads out there, a few of them do.
Most of them live in a district that I don't represent. I represent
the Western half of the state. Most of the big ranches are in the
Eastern half. But the point is that they would believe that they are
being treated unfairly and do believe they are being treated very
unfairly because we count those assets.

But I expect that the people here and in many other places
where you don't have these huge ranch estates would believe that
we should count their assets.

Mrs. ANDREWS. I'm not talki. 1g about a few multi-millionaires.
I'm talking about your common ordinary everyday taxpayer.

Mr. WILLIAMS. These fellows are broke. They have no liquidity.
They are broke. The last 7 years have busted them. They're sitting
on $4 million estates.



Mrs. ANDREWS. ell, let them sell part of it.
Mr. WILLIAMS Tnat's what they say about your house. But our

assets are diminishing, ou: land prices are ping down and Mrs.
Andrews has got a good deal because she lives in place where the
prices are going up.

Mr. NOEHRENBERG. With ell due respect, Mr. Chairman, we're
living in these houses. You an't like saw off half of it and hell it
off, but you can sell off half your land if you got it.

MTS. ANDREWS. Right.
Mr. WILLIAMS. I agree. Let me tell you that despite playing

devil's advocate, I agree with you, but I am not surprised that the
majority of Congress does not agree with you because election re-
sults tell us not. That's my point.

Mrs. ANDREWS. Right. Again I am not for spending more money,
but I am or being treated fairly and equally. That's all i ask.

Mr. IVILLIAms. There are those who would debate that and 'ay
you are bfing treated fairly.

Mrs. ROUKIMA. You know, we have a wonderful opportunity
here, I mean, we're giving my constituents a wonderful opportunity
to recognize the tning that I learned, to my astonishment my first
year in Congress and that is that this country is very very diverse
geographically, ethnically, socially, economically. It's rich and di-
verse and it's all represented, every single group is represented in
the Congress through their congressional representatives and
when you get an issue, whether it's this issue or an issue of what
level of defense or whatever and the American people sit out there
and say, "How could they come to that conclusion ?'

Well, it's because it's a synthesis of so many diverse interest
groups and I mean interest groups in the best sense of the word
and so many diverse economic groups and we have to put up with
Montana ranchers and union people from Chicago, right?

Mr. HAYES. Right
Mrs. ROUKEMA: And they have got to put up with me, you know,

and my middle class constituency. But it is important for us to un-
derstand the multi-dimensions of the problem so that we can come
to a resolution that is fair and equitable and I knew that the Chair-
man would not let me down, he would not let this Committee hear-
ing conclude without doing his usual devil's advocacy act here.

Mrs. ANDREWS. And Mrs. Roukema, there are many more middle
class constituents than there are Montana farmer loaded with
hard assets that they don't want to liquidate.

Mrs. ROUKEMA. Yes, there are. Quit while you're dread, because
the Chairman has just agreed with ya2.

Let me just make one other point though. We don't need it exact-
ly for the record of this hearing because it has been raised in other
hearings, but I do want it to go on rc :ord, in response to Eric's
comment, and I neglected to pull this statistical fact out for the
public to hear.

When I indiceted that there are budgetary consequences to what
you're talking about in terms of reducing the loan program in
favor of a grant program, that is beyond the actual numbers.

The fact of the matter, and this is one of the intricacies that we
have to deal with in the budgetary process and Chairman Williams
knows this better than I because he serves on the Budget Commit-
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tee as well. But the loan program does leverage additional money.
We leverage about $9 billion in student aid for an appropriate of
about $3.2 billion. That's like 32 cents on every dollar, so you see,
as you get into the program, you understand that we are able to
give so much more out to so many more because of leveraged dol-
lars that are on loan and that is also part of this equation and one
of the reasons, it's unfortunate, but one of the reasons it makes it
more difficult for us to give additional grants, as much as we would
like to.

Yes, Eric.
Mr. NOEHRENBERG. I just wanted to clarify. I was more advocat-

ing shifting the entire loan program, not reducing it, but shifting it
to middle class.

Mrs. ROUREMA You made a perfectly legitimate case and I just
wanted you to understand some of the other economics involved.

Mr. NOEHRENBERG. Thank you.
Mr. WILLIAMS. The loan program is, by the way, extr mdinari_d

successful, particularly from the standpoint of being paid back.
You know, think about this scenario for a minute. You're a

banker. A lowest of the low income person comes in and asks for a
loan, no collateral. Do you make the loan? Absolutely not. Does the
Federal Government make the loan? You bet. It says to the banker,
make the Ilan, we'll guarantee it, go ahead.

The kicker is that these people pay back the loan at a rate of 91
percent, higher than the middle income people are doing that are
putting collateral down. Guaranteed Student Loans is phenomenal-
ly successful on the pay back rate. The problem is that we have so
much money loaned out there, that even a 9 percent default rate is
costing us a $1.5 billion.

Well, we very much appreciate each of you coming before us and
helping us today. Thanks a lot.

Our final panel will consist of Dallas Martin and Brian Fitzger-
ald.

Dallas Martin is tine Directo of the National Association of Stu-
dent Financial Aid Administrators and also a member of the Advi-
sory Committee on Student Financial Assistance.

Mr. Martin, it is always nice to see you, please proceed.

STATEMENT OF A. DALLAS MARTIN, JR., DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATORS
AND MEMBER OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON STUDENT FINAN
CIAL ASSISTANCE

Mr. MARTIN, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I certainly appreciate
the oplortunity to be here and particularly in Mrs. Roukema's dis-
trict at this institution which happens also to be a member institu-
tion of my own association, so I am delighted to be here and it's
always nice to see you too, Mr. Hayes.

Many of the comments that you have already heard today, we
would like to comment on too and let me introduce to the commit-
tee Brian Fitzgei ald who serves as staff director for the Advisory
ComnAtee on Student Financial Aid which Congress authorized as
a part of the higher education amendments of 1986.
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Brian is the person that is responsible for preparing the recent
recommendations which we have transmitted to the Congress and
to the Department of Education in our interim report, looking at
some of the issues that are related with the delivery system and
with need analysis in particular and so we do want to spend some
time with you.

What I would like ' ) do today is just, perhaps as a little back-
ground, talk about, i think, some of the broad issues you have
heard.

As you all know, prior to the passage of the Higher Education
Amendment of 1986, the prima' y need analysis they reviewed, par-
ticularly to distribute the campus based Student Aid Programs,
was known as the Uniform Methodology.

As a result of the changes that occurred, because of the reauthor-
ization, we now have used that structure and basically most of the
principles from that methodology to form a new system that is now
codified into the law known as tie Congressional Methodology.

I think it's fair to say that anyone who has worked in this for a
long time would find that while there are certain differences be-
t ween the two, there are certainly a lot of similarities. It is also
important to understand that some of the changes that were made,
contrary to some people's popular opinion, were not made acciden-
tally, they were made very consciously, with members of the Con-
gress and the staff, visiting with a lot of members, a lot of people
and some choices wei a modified in the current methodologies.

We have certainly, through our association and the Advisory
Committee at our last two meetings, have attempted to review the
current formulas to get some idea of what the impact is. And, I
think there are just a small number of changes that I would like to
comment on, most of them have been touched upon by various wit-
nesses before this subcommittee today.

Let me just review, very briefly, about five issues that I think are
critical, four of which are outlined in my written testimony but one
other one which I will comment upon because of some comments
that have Coen made here p_ viously.

These are really, in my opinion, the primary changes that were
seen within the methodology and, while there are others, these are
the most significant and I think are causing most of the discussion
and perhaps some of the concerns from various members.

The first that has been referenced many times today, is the use
o' the base year rather than the estimated year income in deter-
mining the exclusive contribution in the case of dependent students
and also in the analysis of independent students.

This is a major change from what we have had previously. It
came about primarily because 'f concern about insuring that we
had reliable data. There had been criticisms before because of qual-
ity control studies from the Department of Education and so on
that said, well, when we have gone back, we have discovered there
is a certain amount of information that people have submitted in
the system that was wrong and the reason for that was that it's
very difficult for people to make an estimate a year in advance of
exactly the amount of money they're going to have.

And even though the analysis that was done by the Department
shows that it was not as bad as they somewhat reported, but there
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was a concern that we move the base year income so that it is veri-
fiable, that we could actually take a tax return and we could look
at that to make certain that is what people had. So that, in large
part, is partially why we went to that.

The problem with that is that while it is now verifiable, it may
be total meaningless because for independent students, as you have
heard, in some cases, as one of the witnesses testified earlier, an
individual is working full time, that he or she gives up their job
and goes back to school and is not going to be able to work as much
and maybe less. Clearly to expect them to have the same earnings
on what you can assess their needs, is not fair.

Now there are a couple of ways that this could be dealt with.
You can clearly try to make these adjustments when you know
that it's under the professional judgment, that is provided in the
law to need administrators, but you have also heard several com-
men'cs today from many knowledgeable people about the complex-
ities and some of the details in doing that paper work and particu-
larly on a one on one basis.

The other approacl- that we had, which some people would favor
would be to continue to use estimated year and then to monitor it
and make adjustmer L that go along.

This is a dilemma that there is not an early solution to. You will
find different people that have different opinions, on this and so
therefore, I think, as the Advisory Committee, we have looked at
this and decided that, at least in the short term, that we felt there
were some reasons that the Congress wanted to use base year
income and so the question is now, how to try to do that with reli-
ability and verifiability of it, and at the same time, try to work out
the adjustments that are necessary for those where it is wrong.

Mrs. Roukema, let me just make a comme-A, because you made a
question to one of the witnesses earlier about the 'limp in earnings
and this is exactly the place it is.

For a student that had this dislocation that was working full
time and now goes back and starts their program of study, you're
correct that for that first year, once you have made that adjust-
ment, if that person continues in pretty much the same direction
in the future, we assume then that the next year's earnings, be-
cause it is going to reflect what it was during that year, is not
going to cause the problem. But that is only in that independent
student case.

The other place with base year income, that I think the witness
responded to you about and said, no, because they were perceiving
it differently, they were interpreting it that you were talking about
the dependent student earnings in the front end and there is a dis-
tinction there that we need to keep between the dependent student
earnings as opposed to the base year earnings on the independent
student. It's a one time anomaly until they go ahead and progress
through.

In mentioning that subject, that brings me to really the second
point that I would like to talk about and e s somewhat the de-
pendent student earnings and, in particula' me taxation rate on
those because that probably is the one issue that we're hearing the
most about and has probably been referenced here the most this
afternoon.
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Prior to the Congressional Methodology, the old Uniform Meth-
odology simply required a minimum expectation of all students, the
belief being that students certainly have a responsibility to their
ability to contribute to the cost of their education.

And that same peinciple is carried forward in the Congressional
Methodology, in that freshman students are required to have a con-
tribution of $700 and upper classmen $900, as a minimum.

We also put into the Congressional Methodology a change that
also said, in some cases students have additional amounts beyond
that and if they do, is it not reasonable to expect some portion of
that to be used toward that student? The rate of 70 pr rcent was
chosen, somewhat because that had previously been used in looking
at independent students in terms of sof. proxy.

I can't say that it is a good figure or had figure, but at least it
is the figure that wac chosen. The fact that now that we have
gone to base year in doing that, we are clearly causing many many
students such as the one young lady that was just here in this
chair before me. That because of those students that have earned
the year before, we're now Asking those that have more significant
earnings, that have been the most industrious, to come forward
and ask that 70 percent of that be available for the next year.

It's not only that we're taxing 70 percent of it. For a thrifty stu-
dent, if they had saved it, because we're picking that up off the tax
returns, if they had put it into a savings account, we come back on
the asset side and take 35 percent out of the savings expectation so,
in essence, ' ey get a 105-percent contribution as opposed to any-
body beyonu the minimum and I think that is really unfortunate. I
think that is something that we can address. We have had conver-
sations with the Department of Education about how to deal with
some of this and hopefully there may be some changes coming for-
ward from their regulations. But it is a problem in the formula and
it was one that I think was not understood and perhaps somewhat,
that we did not spend enough time on when we were developing
the legislation. But it is significant and it's having a major impact
upon a little over 40 percent, nationally, of all dependent students
who have earnings above the minimum.

We are finding from some of the analysis that has been done
that those changes in contributions for many of those students is a
decrease of on the average between $1,200 to $1,600 and that is an
average and some are either higher or some are lower.

So that is a significant issue that we would hope that the sub-
committee would look at.

Let me turn to another issue and erne that has now really been
resolved, but one that we also, as an Advisory Committee, are rec-
ommending be changed and in which some of you may still be
hearing some comments from some of your constituents, and that
was the removal of room and b .rd and ether living costs that are
associated with independent students with dependents from the
student expense budget and incorporate it in a minimum standard
maintenance alio sance into the formula.

Now very candidly, the reason that -egress cotivio,'sly put a
standard maintenance allowance into rmulas for independent
students with dependents, was the fact that they were finding that
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diLerent institutions were building studen., expense budgets quite
differently and there was no consistency.

Some iastitutions, in the majority, were very responsible and
were trying to build reasonable student expense budgets, but some
were not and as a result there were some students that were inde-
pendent students, particularly with dependent children, that were
simply not getting a fair break and were experiencing real 'tiara-
ships.

So the decision was, let's look at those people more the way we
looked at &pendent parents and let's put right into the formula
some kind of a minimum standard allowance that will compensate
for what basic costs should be with raising that family. And then
we'll look at the student, in terms of the additional expenses that
he or she has, obviously, that take care of the direct educational
costs.

Well originally the Department of Education had interpreted
that with this change, that because it was built into the formula,
that for a student, an independent student whose income wag less
than that Standard Maintenance Allowance, that the institution
could make no adjustment, and the only adjustment you could
make was strictly for child care.

Now again, I know that members of this subcommittee, Congress-
man Ford, who is a member of this subcommittee, Senator Simon
and others had written to Secretary Bennett. The Secretary real-
ized that he had, perhaps, misinterpreted that. He has now issued
a new change and has said that now, in fact, for an independent
student, whose income is less than the Standard Maintenance Al-
lowance, that the institution can build that into their budget and
therefore it is allowable so that you take care of that gap that ex-
isted with some students and particularly those that had the least
amount of income and support.

I would suggest, however, and I think the Advisory Committee
has recommended that we still put that into the law, however, to
insure that there is not that same misinterpretation at some point
in the future.

The fourth change is one that you may not be hearing as much
from your constituents, but we are certainly hearing from institu-
tions in many cases and this was a very conscious decision to treat
independent students with dependents similar to the way that par-
ents are treated in the dependency models.

There were a lot of associations and groups that, during the re-
authorization hearings, that said we would like to see a change and
particularly for a single parent that had dependent children that
they are supporting that we ought to treat them more like depend-
ent parents. And, I think most people agreed with that. They felt
that that ought to be a change.

While that was the original position that was advanced by the
House, it was modified by your colleagues in the Senate and it
came back and through the conference. it came out that they
would treat independent students with dependents all the same. So
they're all now treated similar to the way that we treat parents as
dependent models.

There obviously t.re differences of opinion on this. What this does
and what it has resulted in is that, fer most of these independent
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students now, by giving them all the same allowances and the
same offsets as you do parents, most of them now have very mini-
mal contributions toward student aid and as a result of that, their
eligibility has gone up dramatically to the point that most of them
are now fully eligible for every single program. Now whether that
was totally the intent or not, I would say that we have heard a
number of people who said, who were probably parents or single
parents that had dependent children which they are supporting,
"We think that is a good value judgment."

There is less agreement in the case of two students who get mar-
ried and do not have children and therefore whether or not they
should be treated with all the protection, as you do dependent par-
ents. That clearly gets into something that is a policy or a value
judgment, but there are those the4 elieve that that was wrong and
that it shouldn't have been that way. That is obviously a decision
that Congress maL ..: at that time, and it's one that I am sure that
Congress will continue to evaluate and make some decision to
either keep or to change in the future.

One other issue that I did not mention here, that we're hearing,
and I think it's tied into this even though these four deal with need
analysis. It's a question why, as many people are saying, why has
my eligibility for a loan particularly changed. I was eligible last
year, why am I not eligible this year.

Well, the reason is very simple and I would just say to you that
primarily it's due to a little piece of legislation called Gramm-
Rudman-Hollings which imposed upoa all of the committees the re-
quirement that you had to come up with major savings. As a result
of this authorizing committee, when you were trying to do the re-
authorization, you had to make some very difficult choices and one
of the choices that the subcommittee made is that in order to main-
tain kind of a n 'in. support and prcoride some slight increases
in grant aid ar. . t -antain a campus bas.' program, it was neces-
sary to come back and tighten up on the eligibility of the loan pro-
grams.

And so what you made a decision to do, which was to require
need analysis across the board for Guaranteed Student Loan fami-
lies to insure that those dollars and those heavily subsidized loans
are being directed to those most in need.

Additionally, however, you expanded and made possible the use
of parent loans and supplemental loans for those people who did
not qualify and while the terms on those are not as favorable,
clearly it does provide a source of capital. That was not an easy de-
cision. I know it was not a decision that most members of the
House and Senate authorizing committees wanted to make, but I
do think it was on economic necessity and a balance that had to be
judged at that particular point ir time.

The problem is that along with making new need-based Guaran-
teed Student Loans, we not only have no longer the use of the look
up tables that didn't look at assets the same. We also no longer
allow them the flexibility, since it's need-based, to substitute that
for parental contributions which in any middle and upper middle
income families were doing.
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And so that has caused a lot of concern and I hear it every place
I go and I am sure that you do and it's just a reality somewhat
based on budgetary premises.

We have looked ?..i this as an advisory committee on all of this
and while we recognize that there are not easy solutions, we tried
to come forward, and I think it's reflected in the interim report
which Brian had transmitted on our part, to basically, at least, for
this year or two, to basically try to come forward with only a mini-
mum number of changes until we have more time to do some addi-
tional review of some of these changes.

Because some of the shifts that were seen, while we know they're
going on, we don't know whether they wall be good, bad or indiffer-
ent over time. I think it's safe to say that most institutions are
hearing more from their continuing students because they see the
difference than they are from entering students who don't know
any differences. They don't know that you're expecting more from
them, so I suspect the people they are hearing most from, at least
the financial aid people that I talk to, are the renewal students or
people that are now coming back that had children in school a year
or two ago and say, "Why has this changed so much?"

What we have recommended, as an advisory committee, it's basi-
cally four issues that we think should be put forward immediately
that will help and I want to , ddress these major issues, but I do
think they are critical to provide some modification and helps.

One is a minor modification on the independent studeni, defini-
tion which we spell out for all of our regents that will help to sim-
plify the process and also will avoid a lot of students from auto-
matically becoming independent luring their third or fourth year
of educational studies because of t s $4,000 limitation.

Second is that we would like to explicitly permit aid administra-
tors to use professional judgment in assisting those low income stu-
dents that I mentioned earlier with independent student families
that have incomes that are less than the Congressional Methodolo-
gy. And, as I said, while the Sec-fetary's change has taken care of
that, we would still like to have that in the law.

The third recommendation that we would make deals with the
changes in veterans benefits and you have heard several people
today reference that. The fact is that there is not consistency be-
tween the Congressional Methodology and also the Pell Grant for-
mula and we ought to, and what we're recommending is that you
collect information on all of them on the form, but then we treat it
as a student resource and ' hey all count as a resource at the insti-
tution as a part of the packaging philosophy.

Fourthly, we would recommend the change to eliminate the in-
consistencies as a result of the Higher Education Act regarding the
double counting of earnings from the prior year and the base year
and the following year and particularly those that are non- need-
based and work out that problem on those.

We have some other suggestions that we're looking at and a
number of issues that we are also continuing to study, that you
have assigned to us and others that we think are important, includ-
ing additional changes on simplifying need analysis.

We expect to be able to report back to you soon on many of those
issues. Let me also say, however, that we are really at a critical
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point and if any of the recommendations that the Advisory Com-
mittee is going to make that will have a chance of being involved
in the 1989-1990 Application Forms, we need to move very quioirly
since those final forms are in clearance at the Department of Edu-
cation and OMB at the present time.

So T would say to you, in all candor, that if we're not able to get
legislation through, within the next 30 days, and I understand the
time frame, I am Lot certain that we don't run the risk of delaying
those forms and if that's the case, I am not certain that we would
not want to recommend to you that, unfortunately, we would have
to hold off on some of those to 1990 and 1991.

Those changes that do n't affect the application, however, that
can be dealt with in the methodology, the formulas could still be
enacted.

So questions like the change on the definitions which is co criti-
cal to the fern issue on the independent student might not be able
to be resolved, but we could dea! with some of the formulas and the
other changes that are in the formulas that could be repro-
grammed. So we might have a compromise on that and we would
be happy to work with the staff in dealing with that.

Let me just very quickly, in conclusion here, say that there are
two other quick issues that I want to bring to your attention that
are certainly a concern of my own association with NASFAA and
again, one of these today was mentioned anc that's the treatment
of parents and the offset for parents in the Family Contribution.

There is history in my testimony about the background and why
that is going on and I think that the concern that we have is that
there are legitimate reasons for parents to go back to school. We
don't want to take that away. But, what we do believe is that thoal
parents should be sub;ect to the same eligibility criteria that is as-
signed to students. And that is that they should be matriculated
into a program that is in a degree or certificate program, not
simply taking enrichLient courses and we also think that they
should be enrolled at last half time or more, just as we expect of
students and otherwise, teey should not be able to get the offsets
from them.

Another issue is with the Simplified Needs Test and the problem
that we have here is not really as much your problem as it is
changes in the Tax Reform Act. I would note that that has caused
several problems. One of the changes that we have now is that in
order to report the taxable portions of grants and scholarships, the
only way you can do that is by filling out the regular 1040's. Do not
report that on the 1040EZ or the 1040A.

So by necessity, with low income students that we're trying to
serve with a Simplified Needs Test, below $15,000 will put them
through one year and the next year, because they got grants, we'll
have to report them on the other and they are out.

And so we have some suggestions here that you may need to
relook at in changing that which we think would be helpful too.

In conclusion, let me just say that you have a very difficult task.
Not only are you fighting with the loan default issues right now
and tremendous pressures to bring that down. We have heard here
a lot of concerns of people saying, well can't we make the formulas
a little better for us, we would all like some of it. We have got tre-
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mendous budget deficits right now. We've got a lot of differences of
value judgments as to how people are dealing with this and a lot of
the issues, I have to say to you in all candor, boil down to those
kind of political choices that one has to make versus some of the
hard economic choices.

Unfortunately, while I hear many people say, you know, I don't
think I'm getting my fair share and I have a lot of sympathy with
them and I do think our government and all the resources and
wealth that we have in this country should be serving them. The
fact remains, even on issues such es home equity which is so emo-
tional to people or talking about farm assets or selling off your
lands as the ranchers in Montana, those are assets and under the
methodology we protect a certain portion of it, we tax a certain
portion, we don't take it all.

But I think it is also important to remember that there are
many many many thousands of Americans out there that don't
have any of that.

And when you have very difficult choices and very scarce dollars,
it's difficult at times to know who should receive which portion of
that.

I think you have done a good job of trying to stretch it about as
far as you can.

I think the thing that concerns us, on the whole thing is that
while we do not want to lose and keep the scarce dollars away from
the low income and those that have the least chance to help them-
selves, I do state that it's really important to try to maintain and
get, perhaps, additional money to assist hard working Americans
that are paying the most into the system. Maybe that takes some
changes in priorities on how we are spending, but I think that is
-Arhat we have to look at for the future.

I thank you for the chance to be here. Brian and I, either one,
will be happy to respond to questions.

[The prepared statement of A. Dallas Martin, Jr., follows:]
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Mr Chairman, members of the Subcommittee, it is indeed a pleasure to be with you today at

this field hearing, and to have the opportunity to discuss with you our preliminary assessment of

the Congressional Met, odology used to determine eligibility for Title IV federal student assistance

programs. I actually appear before you today in two capacities The first is as a member of the

Advisory Committee on Student Financial Assistance In this capacity, I would like to share with

you Me Committee's recommendations regarding the Congressional Methodoloi,y These

recommendations were transmitted to the Congress and to the r intent of Education in an

Interim report isseed in April of this year I am accompanied today by Mr Brian Fitzgerald who is

the Committee's Staff Director and the person responsible for preparing the Advisory Committee's

overall report The second is to offer some additional recommendations and comments on behalf

of the National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators, the premier student aid

organization, of which I am President

As I'm sure you know, during the Reauthorization of the Higher Education Act of L986, the

Congress made a number of changes to the federal student assistance programs Included in those

changes was the decision to codify in law the actual need analysis formulas used to determine n.-:t

only a student's eligibility for the Pell Grant Program, but also those formulas which must be used

to evaluate a student's financial need for the campus-based and Guaranteed Student Loan Programs

The decision to codify in detail both methodologies was primarily in response to two issues The

first was to impose limitations on the Department of Education and Administration officials who had

attempted to modify or manipulate the Pell Grant formulas for their on budgetary or policy goals

over the past several years The second was to place the responsibility for determining the amount

of federal student assistance that a student TeCelNeS directly under the control of the elected

members of the Congress w ho hale the responsibility for determining both the amounts of money

expended annually fo- th^se programs, Id the apes and characteristics of families and students

who should receive .sui.h as' klanLe
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In addition to mato, these changes, the Cons .,s also authorized tne creation of the

Advisory Committee 01 Student Financial Assistaace wnose charges, include s e responsibility to

(I) des elop, review, -.id comment annually upon the system of needs analysis established

under Section 41 A through 41IE and Part F of this title,

(11 monitor, apprise, and esaluate the effectiveness of student aid delivery and

recommend improvements,

1, recommend data co'lection needs and student information requirements which would

improve access and choice for eligible students under this title and assist the

Depa anent of Education in improving the delivery of student aid and in assessing

tne impact of legislative and administi .ve policy proposals,

(41 review and comment upon, prior to promulgation, all regulations affecting programs

under this title, includit g proposed regulations

(5) recommend to the Congress and to the Secretary such studies, surveys, and analyses

of student financial assistance programs, policies, and pract.ces, including the

special needs cf .ow-income, disach antaged, and nontraditional students, and the

means by whica the nee,, may be met, out nothing in this section shall authorize

the committee to perform such studies, ,eeys, or analyses,

(6) re .ew and comment upon standards by which financial need is measured in

determining elig,aility tor :sclera'. student assistance programs, and

(7) appraise the adequacies :id deficiencies of current stuuv li tancial aid information

resources and servi:es and evaluate the effectiveness of current student aid

information programs

Under this nc v structure, the actual responsibility for developing and modifying the r d

anaiysis formulas, used to distti'aute Title IV aid, has been placed du.- ty um' he coniroi of the

House and Senate education author.zing committees, math annual comment, advice, and

recommendations pro., ided bs the Ads isory Committee Prior to 1986, the updating and
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modifications of the formulas used to determine a student's need were established differently The

pervious law specifically defined those factors to be taken Into consideration in the establishment

of Pell Grant Program eligibility, but left the determination of financial need for the campus-based

student aid primarily uncle the control of the Secretary of Education The Secretary, in

cooperation with representatives from 'he education community, who operated under the auspicious

of the National Student Aid Coalitiol , met several times a year anu annually modified nd updated

the need analysis formulas

This structure in my opinion operated very successfully, since It provided a forum in which all

of lae primary parties could come together to review important need analy s and stud a aid

delivery system Issues Aoditionally, the Coalition utilized a sub-group of individuals to evaluate

the most technical aspec is of the formulas ^,c1 to perform simularions on proposed changes to help

Illustrate what the afr.,cts would be upon different sub-groups of the student aid filing population

Recommendations front this we "' g technical group were then brought before the full coalition for

review and possible adoption Once a consensus hd been reached by the full coalition, the

proposed changes were then submitted to the Education Department The Department then

published the results and mcorporated Clem into their "betichm,x cases" which in turn were used

to evaluate various systems for approval in determining need for federal student au,

While the Coalition was sometimes criticized for being a self-appointed group, the fact was

that meetinos were open, a wide range of organizations were r.,- resented, ana individuals with

specific concerns were provided an opportun,ty to bring them forward for consideration The

Coalition, however did operate independently, and as such was not under the direct control of any

branch of government or legislative hod, While some may have viewed this structure as a

weakness, I would suggest that It also helped to insuic a certain unt of independence that

helped shield the process from political or administrative manipulation It is tor this ran e reason,

that I hope th, the Student Aid Advisory Committee can continue to operate in a non partisan,

independent manner, which certainly has been the case so far

3
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Since most members of the financial aid community were familiar with and generally accepting

of the Student Aid Coa'ition's structure and operations, it st as only na orzl th it when Congress

decried to write the need analysis formulas Imo the law and place the responsibility for them with

the Congress, that some opie objected

The fact is, however, that this decision was overwhelmingly approved by membe, in both the

House and the Senate Therefo'e, the .esponsibility of the Advisory Committee is to carefully

evaluate the effects of the current system, and to make recommendations to Congress, when

appropriate, for existing or apparent deficiencies in the system.

At its past two meetings, the Advisors Committee has begun to actively discharge its

responsibilities to carefully consider issues which have arisen regarding need analysis and the

delivery of student aid During these meetings, the Committee has received oral as well as written

comments from representatives of the Department of Education, national need analysis 3rvicers,

state agencies, a'd members of the student aid community With this input, the Committee, at Its

April 7-8 meeting, took a series of actions which ranged from recommending to the Congress some

modifications we believe are needed to the existing federal formulas, to ic.entifying some adcliiional

issue that will require further study and analysis

As backgrcund, let me note that prior to the passage of the Higher Education Amendments of

1986, the primary need analysis methodology used to determine a studen:'s financial need for

federal cani,..s-based student aid, as yell as for most state private, and institutional soirees of

aid, was a system known as tut ..:rr'oim Methodology Th methodology was an outgrowth of the

work done by the National Task Force on Student Aid Problems (frequently called the Keppel Tek

Force, since it was chaired by former Commissioner of Education Fro- is Keppel), which was

organized in May 774 u. hen representatives of the College Entranc.: Examination Board brought

together representatises of nrivate foundations, postsecondary institutions, state student aid

programs, an, the Department of Education to garner support for a national review of the student

aid delivery system Fri m this initial meeting, those individuals ogre provide the initial

4
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funding cad organizational effort for the Task Force Financial support was provided by the

Carnegie Founaation of New York, the Ford Foundation, the Lilly .'oundution and the Alfred P

Sloan Foundation, nd as such, no feueral monies were involved For owing its formal

organization, representatives of more than ,ducational associations and organizations directly

involved in the administration and delivery of student financial aid, came together to see what

could be done to improve the student aid delivery system In part.cular, the areas examined

included the analysis of student financial peed, the development of a student common data form,

and better methods for coordinating and mana og studen, aid programs among the various parties

At that time, on of the primary concerns of the Task force members was that there were varying

standards being used to determine a student's and/or famitv's ability to pay for postsecondary

ducatIon These different standards or formulas which were all referred to as "need analysis"

were often misunderstood The Task Force also fmmd that need analysis per se, or its analytical

results, were often been, used as a device to ration the available student aid funds thro gh

artificial or arbitrary decision' about the "need" the student and parents presented As such, what

frequently passed for "need analysis" was really "resource analysis" Therefore, the Task Force

adopted the basic premiss that "T"e, results of need analysis should be an objective and equitable

measurement of the actual -.mount of money needed by a partic ,tudent to successfully

complete a program of study at a particular institution"

the Committee found that "Much of the c,nfusion of students and their parents der ved from

their inability to understant how they could finance an education on the basis of awards made

under artificially limited measurements of their need" Therefore, the Task Force recommended

that "Ettnnates of parental contribution, student t,ontribut.on, and student expense budgets should

not be u-ed as r.tioning devices, and that "efforts should be made to increase the level of funding

available to student aid, but that until hit was accompl.shed the need analysis system and

procedures should not used to make it appear that needs were being met when in fact they were

not

5
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The Task Force also adopted as working principles, the following definitions to guide it in

developing the Uniform Methodology

(t; The determination of ability to pay is a process which InyolYes the measurement of

the economic well being or financial strength of the student and/or his or her

family, and the subsequent determination of a contribution toward educational

expenses through the application of some "taxation rate" to the measure or financial

strength

(2) The determination of program eligibility is the translation of the purpose for si hich

a student aid program has been established (with explicit a- implicit) into some

measurable indicator of an academic, personal, or financial chara,. ristic for tine

desired recipient or his or her family

(3) The determination of financial need is a measurement of the specific amount of

money needed by the individual student attanding or planning to attend a particular

postsecondary institution

Wit these working definitions in mind, the Task Force set about developing a consensus

model which has subsequently been used, with only minor mcdificalions and updates, since the

beginning of the 1976-77 academic year through the 1987-88 award year I would like to note that

while mast of the features and pre edures that were fort, ally a part of the "Unifo m Methodology"

w-re also incorporated into the new formulas w hich now comprise the "Congressional

Methodology," there are a number of s.gnificant changes included in the "Congressional

Methodology" that have caused the mathematical results to be different for certain groups of

students and puents 11hile some of the changes have had little effect on the cia,i ill "family

contributions" produced by the formulas, others haYs made a signit icant difference for some

students Generally speaking, 1 would say that there are tour p.imara changes that hale resulted

6
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in ^ienificant changes between the "Uniform Methodology" and the new "Congressional

Methodology " These are

(1) the use of base year rather tnan estimated year income in determining the student's

contribution in the case of dependent students and in the analysis of dependent

students,

(2) the taxation of dependent students' earnings,

(3) the removal of the room and board, and other living costs ass iated with

independent stuoents from the student exrnse budget which are now inctyporated

into the formula under a standard maintenance allowance, and

(4) the decision to treat independent students with dependents similarly to the way

parents are treated in the dependent student model

While each of these four changes were made for a number of reasons, they have res,flted in both

significant increases and decreases in the contributions for certain students.

Le, me attempt to explain what I believe are the reasons for .hese changes, and also describe

what the consequences are upon certain students

First, ILA s review the use of "base year income" in the analysis versus the use of "estimated

year income" in the determination of an independent student's need. For a number of years Cie

Department of Education and others have been concerned about the reliability of the day, used in

detero-ining student eligibility While base year income has always been used in the formulas for

clculating the parent's f inancial strength, estimated year income has been used for independent

sti.dents lhe dfference was en attempt to try to have an appropriate estimate of the actual

income all parties would ba.e during the enrollment period In the case of parents, their income

does not usually change very much from year to year Therefore, their prior years' income is

used and can be verified with a copy of a tax return In the case of independent students,

however, estimated Int:on. was used because there were many eases in which the student was

leaving a full-time lob to return to school In these Instances, for independent students the
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reliance on the base year income was in fact not a reasonable es' mate of the actual resources

available to them during their enrollment per ad Therefore, the independent student analysis under

the "Uniform Methodology" used estimated year Income to determine the ability of the student to

pay for his or her education

There have always been criticisms of estimated year Income One is that It is difficult to

penalize a student for making a wrong estimate Another is there ha.e been some studies which

show that when asked to estimate their income for a coming year, students and parents from lower

income families have tended to overestimate the amount of resources they will have, whereas

students from more affluent families are Lkely to underestimate their actual Income Nevertheless,

the Congress was persuaded during the reauthorization hearings to move to base year Income for

both parents and students in the dependent model, as well as in the independent studen analysis

For many of these independent students we now have an income figure which can be verified by a

tax return, but unfortunately it is a figure which is meaningless in terms of what the student will

actually have to help pay for college during the next year For a student who was previously

working full-time, and now leases that boo to go back to school, by 'coking at their prior year

income and assuming they have all these resources, the student, at least during their first ,ear,

will in all likelihood be judged to have a higher contribution than what they actually have for Us

next year. If the student can document to the financial aid administratci that he or she does not

have this money, then the t d administrator can under the new lew, exercise his or her

prof, al it.dgment to make an adjustment in the analysis In subsequent years o, study,

assuming the student's family financial circumstances do not change, thl use of base year .ncome

w ill be less disruptive and perhaps more reliable than utilizing an estimate

Still, reaction to this change by the financial aid community has been somewhat mused Some

would argue it is more appropriate to use estimated year income and then at,empt to verify and

monitor the student's actual earning as the y..a, progresses Others would suggest it is better to

8
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use the base year and make adjustments when the student first enrolls and then to rely upon this

data thereafter Needless to say, neither of these approaches is perfect

The secoLd major change which is causing significant increases in the contributions of most

dependent students is the way student's prior year earnings are treated Under the new

"Congressional Methodology," the fundamental concept which was previously contained in the

"Uniform Methodology" which assumed that _.ich student to their ability shoula be reqired to

contribute something to help cover the cost of the education Therefore, al! students ale expected

to contribute something towards their cost of education In the case of a dependent student, the

minimum expected amount for a freshman student is a contribution of $700 and $900 for

upperclassmen The new r'ethodology, however also lool.s back to the student's base year income

and after allowing a deduction for taxes, applies a taxation rate of 70 percent against the

student's prior year earnings as an expectation of what they should be able to co tribute This

means that for any dependent Audent who had a part-time job or higher earnings during his/her

prior school year, 70 percent of that amount of money (unless it was earned under College Work

Study) is now expected to be available as a portion of the student's contribution for the coming

year For students with incomes high enough to be taxed by the marginal rate of 70 percent, we

are seeing significant increases in their expected student contributions Based on analyses which

have been done by the National Need Arilysis Services, it appears that this change effects slightly

more than 40 percent of al, depe- -lent students, and has the effect of increasing their avenge

contributions from approximately $850 to more than $2,300 For many of these students, their

eligibility [Lis year has decreased from between $1,200 ,o SI,600 Therefore students who are

renewal applicants are very surmised and upset to learn that even though their parents' incomes

nave not chinged dramatically from last year, that their eligibility has dechr.eu because of the.r

on earnings

Further complicating this issue, is that for studehis for whom the marginal rate of 70% is

used, the actual amount of prior year income that is assessed could be 105 "i The reason for this

9

9 t)



Is that if any portion of the prior ear's Income is placed Into a say 'rigs account then that amount

is recorded and taxed again at a 35°o rate as an as ail Ible asset Therefore, the current formula for

many dependent students not only assesses them at a much higher self-help contribution level than

prey iousIN. existed, but It tends to double count prior year earnings that are saved for the ,oming

year

This change in my opinion is why all of us are receiving some complaints from "dependent

students" and their families

The results produced by the "Congressional Methodology" on the assessment of parents' income

and assets is similar to the results previously yielded under the "Uniform Methodology" The

general exception to this statement is that for higher income parents, contributions have increased

Ho.yeser. the reason for the change is more a function of tax reforn. changes than because of

changes in the "Congressional Methodology"

the results produced by the new methodology on the assessment of the deperdent student

earnings and assets has increased significantly for over 40% of 'hat population

The third major change, that has caused some problem for independent students is the

removal of room, board and other living expenses from their student experse budget and the

incorporation of them into a standard maintenance allowance in the formula Previously for

independent students with dependents, each institution was charged with the responsibility for

establishing a realistic student expense budget which included adequate allowance to cover the

OaSIC living expenses of the student and their dependents, plus the additional amounts associated

with obtaining the student's edu, at on

While most schools did this appropriately, there were wide differences at s3me institutions

Therefore, clf.ring reauthorization the decision was made to establish a standard maintenance

allowance Into the formula, to offset hying costs associated with the maintenance of an

independent student and his or her family, and to eliminate the iti.ms prom the institution's

student t.xpense bucket

10
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While the concept of providing some consistency for all indep "ndent students with dependents

is sound, a problem arises w hen the student's income is less than the standard maintenance

allowance For example, if you have two identical families, consisting of a single parent and two

elementary school age children the standard maintenance allowance for both is 310,440 If the

first parent earns S7000 a year and tne second earns 5I2,030 a year then they have a S5,000

difference in availaole resources Howe5er, under the formula both are pre/sided an offset fr.m

their income, a standard maintenance allowance of $10,440 As such, the first parent does not have

sufficient earnings to cover the full amount associated with this allowance and therefore has a gap

of $3,440 .vhich is not allowable as a part of the stude t expense budget, while the second parent

has the resources to cover this expense

Fcrtunately this issue has now been corrected, primarily due to intervention by Congressman

William D Ford, a long standing member and former Chairman of this Subcommittee, and Senator

Paul Simon, both of whom wrote to Education Secretary William Bennett e rher this year, about the

Department's interpretation of the fe mula and what is allowable in the ,st -of- attendance As

such, the Department has Low modified its earlier position, and instit ion now can include the

differences between the standard maintenance allowances and the "gap" in income into their cost-

of-attendance calculations This change in interpretation, however, was only announced in late

May, and therefore, some confusion may continue to exist

The fourth significant change, was the decision to treat independent students with dependents,

similarly to the way that parents are evaluated in the dependent student model

This was a major policy change that was requested by many organizations and groups dune^

the reauthorization hearmgs It wax their belief that au independent student who had dependent

children of their own to care for, should receise the same treatment in evaluating their ability-to-

pay as was being afforded to parents in the dependent model Most of these groups, however, felt

that if the student's only dependent was a spouse that th^y should be expected to contribute a

significantly higher portion of their rarniigs towards pas mg for the ^osi of their aducation The
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law was changed, but it provideC all of the same allowance and protections afforded to parents in

the department model, to an independent student with dependents regardless of whether the

dependent is a spouse or a dependent child As such the expected contributions for independent

students with dependents in the "Congressional Methodology" have been reduced significantly, from

what they previously were under the "Unnorm Methodology"

From discussions we have had v .-, our members, most people belief that it is appropriate to

evaluate independent students, who have H-nendent children ror whom they are responsinle, in this

manner, but they believe that an independent student with only a spouse should be expected to

contribute far more of their resourc.n towards pay ing for their education Obviously, this is a

policy decision that different people feel differently about, however, the affect of :he current

"Congressional Methodology" upon these students has made nearly all of them fully exigible for

most forms of financial aid

Therefore, because of the four issues I have described, I think that you need to be aware

that overall the "Congressional Methodology" is shifting more of the federal student aid dollars

away from "dependent students" towards "independent students" and in particular those "independent

students with dependents"

Whether. or not these changes are good or bad can perhaps only be assessed over time, but in

the short term they are causing some significant shifts in the f nancial need expectations of

different groups of students

While most people, including the members i,f the Advisory Committee on Student Financial

Assistance, are concerned about the shifts, it is difficult to evaluate the cumulative effei is at this

t .ne Therefore, rather than proposing major changes, the Advisory Committed decided to only

recommend our imm:diate changes to the existing need analysis for the 1989-90 academic year

These recommendations are to

Make minor modifications to thc indipendent student definition to eliminate confusion

concerning the years in which must be demonstrated, simplit y the definition without
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significant Impact, and avoid large numbers of students automatically becoming

independent in their third and fourth sears of educational st,idv,

Explicitly permit aid administrators to use professional judgment to assist :ow ,rcome

Independent students with families, me income is less than the Congressional

Methodology's standard maintenance allowance, by adjusting cost of attendance,

Eliminate veteran's benefits from the Pell Grant Family Coniribution Schedule and the

Congressional Methodology and consider such benefits as resources in order to ensure

consistency in the treatment and simplify the administration of these benefits, and

E.iminate inconsistencies in the Higher Education Act and regulations that could result in

double-counting academic-year student earnings as resources for the academic year they

are earned and base year Income in the following year by treating all non-need-based

earnings as base year income for the next academic year

While the second recommendation has already been addressed by the Secretary's recent change in

policy, we believe that legislative languige should be added to avoid such miriiiterpretation in the

future

We would also note, that we are at a critical point in the delivery system cycle and that in

fact the 1989-90 application forms are in final clearance within the Education Department

Therefore, unless these changes are finalized within the next thirty days or less, they will have to

be delayed until 1990-91 award year

the Advisory Committee meanwhile plans to continue to carefu ly study the following six

Issues over the course of the next year and to report to Congress as each of our analyses Is

completed These Issues are

The number, type, cons, and effects on students of multrple data entry processors,

The practice of institutional lending,

The Secretary's and other proposals to simplif y need analysis,

The potential effects of the Secretary's del ault initiative,
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The redistributional and delivery system effects of the Congressional Methodology; and

The degree to which student aid programs serve and benefit various student

subpopulations

Before closing my statement let me also identify a couple of additional issues that are of

concern to NASFAA members

The Congressional MethsJology does reflect a polwy change in the dependent model, which

differs from the Uniform Methodology This change relates to the treatment of parents enrolled in

college The Uniform Methodology was changed effective for 1984-85 to eliminate a reduction in

the family contribution for a parent who was enrolled in college The reasons cited for the change

at that time were

I) that more and more parents were enrolling in very low cost institutions and that

reducing their contribution in those cases distorted the measurement of their ability to

pay,

2) that low income families receive virtually no benefit from this treatment, since in most

cases It is parents form higher income families who enroll in college, and

3) that the number in college adjustment was the same regardless of whether the parent

was ?nrolled for only one course or full time, or whether the par at was enrolled in a

degree or certificate program or was simply taking a social enrichment course.

NASFAA Members recognize that there are legitimate reasons for some parents to enroll in

postsecondary education They believe, however, that the same eligibility criteria assigned to

students should also apply to parents in terms of the number in college adjustment NASFAA

recommends therefore, that such an adjustment only apply to parents enrolled at least half-time in

a degree or certificate program

Another issue of concern to NASFAA Members relates to the Simplified Needs Test

impleoated as a result of Reauthorization NASFAA applauds Congress' efforts to simplify the

need analysis process for low income families There are however several problems related to the
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simplification currently outlined in the statute First, reporting of taxable portions of grants and

scholarships, as required by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, must be done on the IRS Form 1040

Filing of a Form 1040, however, precludes the use of the Simplified Need Test Therefore many of

the low income families, the Simplified Test was desli,ned to assist, are prohibited from using it

because they received need-based aid, portions of which are now taxable, in the previous calendar

year

Secondly, the criteria for qualifying for a simple needs test are not simple The family

adjusted gross income (student's plus the parents') must not exceed 4+15,000 and both the student

and the parent must have filed a Form 1040A, 1040EZ, or not filed a tax returr, It would be much

easier for families to determine if they meet the 515,000 criteria if only the parents' income were

considered for dependent students The determination and the form could be simplified substantially

if the simple form/needs test were restricted to non-tax filers In that event, those qualifying

could be directe, ^round the tax return questions entirely

The simple needs test is the same as the regular Congressional Methodology except that it

excludes assets (both parents' and students's), makes no allowance for medical/dental or elementary

and secondary tuition expenses, and excludes veterans benefits While it may appear advantageous

to exclude considerations of assets, it may be detrimental to the family when compared to the

regular Congressional Methodology results

The regular Congressional Methodology considers assets as contributing to or detecting from

the financial strength represented by income From net assets is subtracted an Asset Protection

Allowance. If the result of this subtraction is positive, assets are considered to add to financial

strength and a positise income supplement is added to income This normally s..,1 result in an

Increase in expected family curribItion If the result of this subtraction is negative, however, a

negative income supplement s useu an i the expected family contribution will normally decrease

Since Cie simple needs test excludes asses, ii a so excludes the possibiloy that a low asset

s tuation may reduce the contribution from inc ii le
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The problem, with the current simple form/needs test criteria are that it is often difficult for

a family to determ..te whether they qualify and, having made that determination, even more

difficult to determine whether it will work to their advantage or disadvantage

There is also some concern that while a $15,000 income is low for a family, it is not an

insignificant amount for independent students without dependent children

We would encourage the Congress to continue its efforts toward simplification and would be

happy to work with the Committee to &vise a process that is fair and equitable

Again, 1 appreciate the opportunity to discuss these important issues I will ee happy to

answer any questions you might have
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Mr. WILLIAMS. Mr. Fitzgerald, you have no statement?
Mr. FITZGERALD. In light of the time and the temperature, I'll

forego a statement.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Mrs. Roukema.
Mrs. ROITKEMA. I really have no questions for you, Mr. Martin. I

think you have. very eruditely summarized the problem and more
than that, you have given us some specific recommendations that I
think might feasibly be accommodated in the foreseeable future.
Whether or not it could be conducted by staff in such a way that
we could make some regulatory or changes for that 1989-1990 yea'
in terms of formula, rather than legislative changes, I don't know.
But that would be a very useful thing to come out of this hearing
in terms of the specifics as you have outlined them.

Mr. MARTIN. I would really be happy to, both Mr. Fitzgerald and
his full staff of one and the rest of us on the Advisory Committee,
along with my staff, we would be happy to try and work that out
and work with your staff on L9th sides of the committee to do that.

Mr. ROUKEMA. I think the case has strongly been made for cer-
tain of these things where there is cbvious consensus and it would
be a shame for us to lose a whole :ear, if that weren't necessary.

So I thank you for your testimony. You hai,e put things in a good
focus for us.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Mr. Hayes.
Mr. HAYES. For the same reason as stated by Mr. Fitzgerald, I'll

forego any questions.
Mr. WILLIAMS. Mr. Martin or Mr. Fitzgerald, there are, as you

know, a number of complaints about the complexity of the applica-
tion itself and the application process, including its expense.

Is the Advisory Committee considering that on its agenda? Mr.
Fitzgerald?

Mr. FITZGERALD. Yea, M. Chairman. We were considering it
from two different perspectives. As you know the legislation
charged us with examining the issue of multiple data entry proces-
sors for the Pell Grant program. That issue is integral to the ques-
tion of the structure of getting applications into the Pell process.

That affects not only the nature of the form itself, with the po-
tential for multiple forms being filled out, but also the expense re-
lated to the student. In tact, the student may have to pay $6, $8,
$15 to process the form through one of these and he ye it shipped on
to Pall. We will be addressing that very straight Li wardly.

In addition, we will be looking at the issue of complexity from a
very different perspective. The complexity in the student aid pro-
grams is really driven by the nature of the programs and formulas.
For example, the Congressional Methodology, the Pell family con-
tribution schedule. Two separate formulas, very long and complex,
relying on a great deal of data, will result inevitably in complexity.
One of the agenda items that the very diverse committee member-
ship has decided that it would like to look at is the issue of simpli-
Pcation and I think for many of the members, traditionally simpli-
fication has meant tinkering with the formulas to shorten them,
but I think many committee members are interested in looking at
simplification much more comprehensively to extend well into the
delivery system and to focus on students and parents getting
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through that procep efficiently. So, yes, we will be looking at the
issue of complexity from two different perspective.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Could the indicators, within the formula, be struc-
tured in such a way that the institution itself, that is the postsec-
ondary institution, could make determinations on eligibility on
cite?

Mr. MARTIN. I would think that it's very possible. I think, par-
ticularly for renewal students, it's very easy to do. I'm not saying
you can't do it with initial students too, but certainly there's a dif-
ference if students are shopping around. But for renewal students,
it's very easy.

You got most of the information, number one, it doesn't change,
people's birth date and Social Security numbers and all that isn't
changed, so if you plug it in, I could have somebody sit on a termi-
nal and take just a few pieces of the information, plug it in, have
the formula in, it's a mathematical formula, have it calculated and
it's done.

Mr. WILLIAMS. We appreciate your help today and we thank you,
Mrs. Roukema, for your leadership in raising this important issue
with the committee. Mr. Hayes, we thank you for traveling with us
to be at this hearing and Mr. Petri who had to leave earl'

We have enjoyed New Jersey hospitality, if not heat, ai.1--
Mrs. ROUKEMA. Sorry about that. I ordered something better.
Mr. Chairman, I want to publicly thank you for, not only your

cooperation in coming here to New Jersey, but I think that you
have been doing an outstanding job this year in your tenure as
Chairman of the committee through a number of seminars, the
Belmont Task Force and now this field hearing.

So we have a great debt of gratitude to you even though we
might not see eye to eye on all those budgetary matters.

Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you. The hearing is adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 4:05 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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